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PM gets tough
with nurses
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PRIME Minister Hubert Ingra-
ham warned public health nurses
that his administration will not
negotiate with persons engaged
in an "illegal strike."

The nation's chief advised nurs-
es that their stand-off could be
resolved as early as Monday but
only if those nurses engaged in
the nearly two-week long "sick-
out" returned to work immedi-
ately.

While stressing that he under-
stood the nurses' frustration over
the government's decision to
defer their $10 million health
insurance plan, he also reminded
the nurses that they fell into the
category of essential services and
therefore could not strike.  

"The government of the
Bahamas, which I lead, is not pre-
pared to do business with people
who are engaged in an illegal
strike, period. Any group of work-
ers can sit down with the govern-
ment to discuss and seek to
resolve any issues. 

"If you choose to do an illegal
strike, don't expect the govern-
ment to entertain serious discus-

sions with you while you remain
out. I regret that the nurses feel
that the government has not
shown respect or regard for them
because that was not our intent
— it is to help," said Mr Ingra-
ham during an address in the
House of Assembly last night. 

His statements came hours
after representatives from the
Bahamas Nurses Union, the Pub-
lic Hospital's Authority and the
Ministry of Health met at the
Department of Labour following
a trade dispute filed by the BNU. 

Yesterday's meeting adjourned
with no resolution, much to the
chagrin of the union. 

Mr Ingraham said government
told the union earlier in the year
that the projected revenue short-
fall was expected to top $200 mil-
lion. He said government again
met with the nurses a few days
before the 2009/2010 budget to
alert them that their insurance
plan would be deferred because of
this, adding that published state-
ments by the union head indicat-
ed that she understood the gov-
ernment's predicament. 

"Something happened subse-
quent to that to cause them to

SEE page 12

First case of
Bahamian

resident with
swine flu

n By KARIN HERIG
Tribune Staff Reporter
kherig@tribunemedia.net

A YOUNG adult who
lives in the Bahamas has
become the country’s second
confirmed case of swine flu.

This comes a day after
Florida recorded its first A
(H1N1) related fatality.

A nine-year-old boy who
suffered from chronic asth-
ma died on Tuesday in Mia-
mi-Dade county just 24
hours after he developed
symptoms of the influenza
virus.

While the patient in the
Bahamas has been quaran-
tined at home and the Min-
istry of Health is monitoring
all persons who came in con-
tact with the person, author-
ities are advising Bahamians
to continue to follow influen-
za preventative measures to
ensure protection of individ-
uals, families and communi-
ties.

Like the first confirmed
case earlier this year, the
infected person travelled
from New York to the
Bahamas.

The Ministry of Health
reported yesterday that the
case of Influenza A (H1N1)
occurred in a Bahamas resi-
dent who had visited New

No negotiations
until ‘illegal strike’
comes to an end

Young adult
has been
quarantined

CENTRAL Police Station officers toured
downtown Nassau yesterday, highlighting a num-
ber of traffic violations and infractions that this
division wants to bring to the public’s attention
and correct.

Glen Miller, officer in charge, led the police
delegation and the media through Rawson
Square, down Bay Street and onto George Street.

Pointing out that the fixed penalty for persons
parking in no-parking areas downtown carries a
fee of $80, officer Jerry Philip Josey said that in
some cases, where a vehicle actually obstructs
the flow of traffic a fine of $100 can be issued.

While unable to identify exactly how many
parking spaces are available for the use of the
average citizen, Mr Josey explained that these
spaces would be clearly outlined with a white
line and can be used for half an hour.

Assistant Superintendent Leamond Deleveaux
said that the Tourism Division, which houses
some 39 officers, has issued more than 400 tickets
every month.

“Despite our best efforts people 
continue to break the law. But we remain vigilant
and our officers are doing a terrific job,” he 
said.

TRAFFIC VIOLATIONS HIGHLIGHTED

OFFICERS SEARCH a vehicle Downtown as they lead a delegation on Bay Street highlighting traffic violations.
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n By NEIL HARTNELL
Tribune Business Editor

GOVERNMENT is planning
to take a $30 million dividend
from the Bahamas Telecommu-
nications Company (BTC) before
privatisation, and transfer $7 mil-
lion in profits from the Central
Bank of the Bahamas, amid a
package of measures that has
pushed projected revenues for the
2009-2010 fiscal year some $151
million higher than initially pro-
jected.

The plans were revealed by the
International Monetary Fund
(IMF) in a supplement to its
recently-published Article IV
consultation on the Bahamian
economy, which analysed the
2009-2010 Budget’s measures.

The supplementary report, with

Govt to take $30m
dividend from BTC
amid package of

projected measures

SEE page nine

SEE page nine

n By ALISON LOWE
Tribune Staff
Reporter
alowe@tribunemedia.net

CHARGING that a
“national mood of misery
and discontent” is on the
rise, opposition leader Per-
ry Christie proposed that
government must show
greater commitment to
preserving and creating jobs.

Contributing to the debate on
the 2009/2010 budget in parliament
yesterday, Mr Christie said the
“large numbers of unemployed
Bahamians is a frightening spec-
tre for the stability of our coun-
try.”

Re-stating the criticisms of his

fellow PLP parliamentari-
ans throughout the recent
debate, the former prime
minister suggested that the
budget prepared by the
Government is “sobering,
depressing and devoid of
any offer of hope as to
how Bahamians will get
through these tough and
intimidating times.”

Touching on a variety
of topics during his speech, Mr
Christie repeatedly came back to
the issue of how Government
could and should have produced
greater plans to lessen the unem-
ployment figures and stimulate
economic activity during tough

Perry Christie hits out
over unemployment

Perry Christie

SEE page 14

n By PAUL G TURNQUEST
Tribune Staff Reporter
pturnquest@tribunemedia.net

PRIME Minister Hubert
Ingraham took the Opposi-
tion to task yesterday during
his summation of the Budget
debate, criticising the PLP’s
constant complaint that his
g o v e r n m e n t “ s t o p p e d ,
reviewed and cancelled” a
number of contracts left in
place by the previous admin-
istration.

Referring to the much pub-
licized and bandied about I-

PM criticises PLP
for complaints
over contracts

SEE page 12

                     



n By ALISON LOWE
Tribune Staff Reporter
alowe@tribunemedia.net

DESPITE cuts in funding to
many areas in this year’s budget,
the Government yesterday hit
back at Opposition claims that
reductions will hurt their perfor-
mance, saying “almost all” of
them will still receive more mon-
ey than they did in the last PLP
budget.

Prime Minister Hubert Ingra-
ham said: “When we say we cut
the budget, we mean we reduced
the increase we put on it (in 2008
and 2007). In almost every single
head we are allocating more mon-
ey for these services than (the for-
mer PLP government) did (in
their 2006/2007 budget).” 

Minister of State Zhivargo
Laing, giving his contribution to
the 2009/2010 budget debate, said
that in light of this, he found it
“curious” that Opposition MPs
condemnd the Government for
the funding reductions during
hard times. 

Current estimates peg recur-

rent revenue
for 2009/2010
to be $184.5
million - 11.8
per cent - less
than the
2 0 0 8 / 2 0 0 9
e s t i m a t e s .
“(The PLP)
did not take
(the various

ministries, departments, agencies)
to a level higher than where our
cuts will land them (despite gov-
erning) in a time when they said
that things were ‘unprecedented’,
‘historic’, extraordinary, unpar-
alleled and uniquely better than
they are now; yet these ministries
and departments will suffer
because of our cuts made when
things have never been worse in
world since the Great Depres-
sion?” said Mr Laing.

“How had these ministries
been able to perform so well with
less money under the former gov-
ernment but will be unable to per-
form well with more money
under this government?”

“Critical” areas which will

receive more funding than they
did in the last PLP budget,
according to the minister of state,
include: The prison department
(10 per cent more) police force
(eight per cent more), defence
force (17 per cent more), depart-
ment of education (eight per cent
more), ministry of education
(three per cent more), College of
the Bahamas (nine per cent
more), department of social ser-
vices (49 per cent more) and the
public hospitals authority (10 per
cent more).  Meanwhile, Mr
Laing said the $12 million cut in
the Ministry of Tourism’s budget
this year, represents $778,630 less
than the Ministry was allocated
in the former government’s
2006/2007 budget. Various Oppo-
sition members had criticised the
tourism budget cut.

n By ALISON LOWE
Tribune Staff Reporter
alowe@tribunemedia.net

THE government has been
attacked for its plans to adjust
the National Youth Service to
lessen its emphasis on the most
unruly boys in Bahamian society

and involve more youngsters who
can be helped before they get into
trouble. 

Responding to the govern-
ment’s announcement, opposition
leader Perry Christie claimed it
is critical that the government
continue to focus on unruly boys,
adding that “cost should not be an

issue” when it comes to this
effort, as the programme offers
them a “redemptive, second
chance” experience.

Mr Christie noted that having
spoken previously with parents
of children who graduated from
the programme, “they regarded
the admission of their child as the

one opportunity they had to save
his life.”

“Intervention into the lives of
young Bahamians who are at-risk
is vital to the orderly develop-
ment of the Bahamas,” he said.

On Monday, Minister of Youth
Sports and Culture Desmond
Bannister told parliament that the
government intends to “relaunch”
the National Youth Programme
in the Fall, moving it from North
Andros to New Providence, and a
location where “the greatest need
exists” for its resources.

He said that the government
intends to use it to reach out to
children before they have a
chance to get into trouble, not
just to help those who have
“already become menaces to soci-
ety.”

Mr Bannister said that moving
the programme to New Provi-
dence will save taxpayer funds.

This comes as the budgetary
allocation for the programme was
reduced to $345,000 this year,
after it rose to $900,000 in last
year’s budget, from a meagre
$17,861 in 2003/2004.

Mr Christie said: “Expert eval-
uations of the Youth Service Pro-
gramme stated in their report that
the programme can be improved,
but that it is working and contin-
ues to be necessary for the long-
term stability and growth of the
Commonwealth of the Bahamas
as a nation.  They certified that
the programme is in fact having a
positive, life-changing impact on
its attendees. They concluded this
programme demonstrates the

merit to be funded long-term and
used as a model for expanding
this type of service across the
nation of the Bahamas.

“It is my understanding that
the Youth Service Programme
will be returned to New Provi-
dence. I can only hope that the
government has carefully weighed
the benefit of the attendees being
out of their normal environment,
together with the significant injec-
tion of funds into the local econ-
omy of North Andros against the
savings effected by relocating the
programme to New Providence.

“These are all important strate-
gies in the process of giving our
youth at risk a redemptive oppor-
tunity for a new life for them-
selves and their families,” he
added.
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Travel should take you places

For reservations call: 322-3301

Father’s Day
is June 21st

DAD Eats Free!
For parties of 8 adults or more one father eats � ee.

Call for group pricing.

Treat your Dad to a delicious meal at 
Portofi no Restaurant 

where you can choose �om a scrumptious buffet fit for a king.
Restaurant hours: 12:00 noon to 3:00 pm

Stay the weekend!
Three fathers will have an opportunity to win one of three great prizes:

- Weekend stay for two in a newly renovated room 
inclusive of full buffet breakfast

- Two month membership to the Hilton Fitness Centre
- $200 food and beverage credit for the new Bullion Bar 

(opening late summer 2009)

Ask about our special weekend Bahamian Resident Rates!

THE police are still investi-
gating the fire that took the
life of an elderly man over the
weekend, Supt Jeffery Dele-
veaux told The Tribune yes-
terday. After losing her hus-
band and her home in the
tragic fire on Saturday, Emer-
ald Cooper, 72, said that she is
sustained by her faith. 

“I am right here in the
Lord’s hands,” said Mrs
Cooper, who saved the lives
of her three grand children by
rescuing them from the blaze.
“I lost my husband and my
home, but not my Saviour.

“God don't put more on
you than you can bear,” she
said. Mrs Cooper is now living
with her daughter in Elizabeth
Estates. The funeral service
for her husband, Leon Coop-
er will be held on Saturday,
June 27, at St Matthews
Church at 2pm.

REPORTS FROM THE HOUSE

Government under fire for plans to adjust National Youth Service

Police continue
fatal fire probe

PM rejects Opposition attack on cuts in budget funding

Zhivargo Laing

           



Bannister condemned for linking PLP
with Nazi propaganda techniques
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Christie: no
effort made to
justify container
port move

n By TANEKA THOMPSON 
Tribune Staff Reporter
tthompson@tribunemedia.net

LEADER of the opposition
Perry Christie admonished gov-
ernment for its handling of the
almost two-week long "sick-out"
by public health nurses. 

Speaking in the House of
Assembly during his contribution
to the 2009/2010 budget debate,
Mr Christie said he was astound-
ed that the government and
Health Minister Dr Hubert Min-
nis allowed so much time to pass
before sitting down to negotiate
an end to the nurses' stand-off. 

"I am very surprised at the way
in which the industrial action by
the nurses has been handled by
the government. It is astounding
that the minister of health and
the minister of labour have
allowed so much time to pass
without addressing the outstand-
ing issues directly with the nurses
union.

"And even if it is a government
decision not to speak with the
nurses, I would have expected the
minister of health with his per-
sonal and professional connec-
tion to persuade his colleagues to
allow him to sit and solve the
problems," Mr Christie told par-
liament, adding that this lack of
action by government was irre-
sponsible.

Yesterday, representatives
from the Bahamas Nurses Union,
the Public Hospitals Authority,
the Ministry of Health and the
Department of Labour were
locked in a meeting for hours in
the hope of bringing an end to
the 10-day nurses sick-out that is
crippling the country's health-care
system. 

Director of Labour Harcourt
Brown said the meeting was
adjourned to Monday – although
union officials say they want to
meet as early as Friday – with no
resolution, adding that govern-
ment representatives were

mulling over proposals put forth
by the union.

Injunction
On Wednesday, nurses called

in sick for a ninth day in protest of
government's decision to defer
their promised $10 million health
insurance plan due to the current
economic crisis – in spite of a
court ordered injunction that they
return to work.

It is unclear if the sick-out con-
tinued yesterday, but The Tribune
understands that while some nurs-
es returned to work, those with
valid doctor's sick notes remained
at home. 

Mr Christie, a former minister
of health, stressed that despite
any disappointment felt over the
nurses' actions, it is government's
responsibility to intervene and
bring order to national issues. 

Mr Christie suggested that if
the PLP's National Health Insur-
ance plan had been implemented,
the issue could have been avoid-
ed.  He also suggested that gov-
ernment provide some level of
coverage for public nurses until
they are able to institute the full
health insurance plan.  

"This is an issue that will not go
away for the simple reason that
some people who have no insur-
ance will die if affected by cer-
tain illnesses because of not being
able to afford the cost of care.
There is nothing more stark and
real than the inequalities in health
care that all of us are part of
maintaining in our country.  

"Cabinet ministers have full
insurance coverage; members of
parliament have the same and the
nurses were promised their own
health insurance.  This is a tough
challenge for nurses and for the
country,” he said.

NO EFFORT has been
made by the government or
the developers to provide
justification for the decision
to have the Container Port
moved from Bay Street to
Arawak Cay instead of the
southwest of New Provi-
dence as the PLP intended,
former Prime Minister Perry
Christie said during his con-
tribution to the budget
debate yesterday.  

“We continue to regard
the decision as a bad one.

“It is inconsistent with all
of the specialised advice that
we have received. 

“It is obvious to me that
the minister (Earl Deveaux)
and his colleagues have
arrived at a formula which is
pleasing to a group who have
decided regardless of the

environ-
mental
implica-
tions, the
aesthetics
of the
operation,
the nui-
sance of it,
that
Arawak
Cay is
where
they want
the facility
and that is
where it

will go,” he said.
Mr Christie chastised

Environment Minister Earl
Deveaux, who he claimed
ventured to suggest that the
“PLP government influenced
the environmental consul-
tants in their selection of the
site for the southwest port.”

“That is absolutely untrue.
The selection was that of the
consultants, with participa-
tion from persons who were
a part of the private sector
group,” Mr Christie said.

“What surprises me about
the minister’s view is that he
has access to a major body of
environmental assessments
which provide the details
behind the consultants’ rec-
ommendation.”

Significant
Mr Deveaux last week told

parliamentarians that the
proposed southwest port had
significant public sector par-
ticipation that is rarely
acknowledged. 

The Environment Minister
said the move to the south-
west was a government-
directed initiative which
depended on government to
make it function — the own-
ership, the structure and the
operations.

Responding, Mr Christie
said yesterday, “I am,
frankly, very disturbed by
the minister’s expressed
view. 

“Again, he is dead wrong.
He is trying too hard to justi-
fy a bad decision to locate
the port at Arawak Cay. 

“A decision that serves
only special interests.” 

“We were committed as a
government to inducing the
owners of the port facilities
on Bay Street to close their
facilities and move to a new
port. 

“It could only happen if
they were going to be lead
participants,” the PLP leader
said.

He said his government
had established a genuine
public/private sector partner-
ship.  

“We intended for Bahami-
ans to be the lead sharehold-
ers. 

“All my government was
asking was for an allotment
of shares to offer the
Bahamian public,” Mr
Christie said.

“As far as the offer from a
private company to develop
the Arawak Cay site, I am
also aware that private com-
panies were interested in
developing or participating
in the southwest port.”

n By ALISON LOWE
Tribune Staff Reporter
alowe@tribunemedia.net

OPPOSITION leader Perry Christie yesterday
condemned Youth, Sports and Culture Minister
Desmond Bannister for what he called an “unac-
ceptable and unaccountably vicious attack” in which
it was claimed that the PLP is using Nazi propa-
ganda techniques.

Addressing the House of Assembly yesterday
morning, the former prime minister said: “As we
have heard in this debate, there is still the necessity
to speak truth to power. It is therefore a sad duty for
me to refer to the statement by the Member for
Carmichael (Desmond Bannister). (He) could bring
himself to connect the PLP with the vile, repugnant
and abhorrent policies of Adolf Hitler. 

“Whatever his intentions, Carmichael stands con-
demned for such an unacceptable and unaccountably
vicious attack,” Mr Christie said as he made his
contribution to the 2009/2010 budget debate.

Hitler
Speaking in parliament on Monday, Mr Bannister

had said that the repetition of the phrase “stop,
review and cancel” by the Opposition amounted to
the PLP — intentionally or otherwise — using pro-
paganda techniques outlined by Nazi leader Adolf
Hitler in his book “Mein Kampf.”

“Members opposite have developed the refrain
‘stop, review and cancel’ almost to a science and I

want members oppo-
site to know that when-
ever they utter that
phrase they are follow-
ing the political theory
of one of history’s most
vicious tyrants, (whose)
big lie theory is well
known,” he said.

Mr Bannister sug-
gested that the PLP is
repeatedly using the
phrase in the hope
that, as Hitler suggest-

ed, “people will believe a big lie sooner than a little
one and if you repeat it frequently enough people
will sooner or later believe it.”

“These kind of political attacks are unwarranted
and disgraceful,” said Mr Christie yesterday, as he
also congratulated his party’s MPs for their “sterling
contributions” to the budget debate. 

Opposition members have suggested for some-
time, and reiterated throughout the 2009/2010 bud-
get debate, that by reviewing, delaying and in some
cases cancelling certain contracts signed under the
former PLP administration, the FNM caused eco-
nomic growth to slow down and made matters worse
for the country when the global financial crisis struck
fully in 2008.

In its assessment of the country last year, the
international credit rating agency Standard and Poor
said the move took the “growth momentum” out of
the economy — a statement which the Opposition
said validated their view.

REPORTS FROM THE HOUSE

You’ve mishandled nurses
‘sick-out’, Christie tells govt 
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PLP LEADER Perry Christie in the House yesterday.

DESMOND BANNISTER

EARL DEVEAUX

‘‘ ‘‘I am very 
surprised at
the way in
which the 
industrial
action has
been handled

               



EDITOR, The Tribune.

THE May 11, 1996 crash of a
ValuJet DC-9 — amid thick
sawgrass, crocodiles and snakes
in the Florida Everglades —
that claimed the lives of
Maxwell and Lucille Newbold
and over 100 other people, is
listed on a Federal Aviation
Administration website as one
of “11 major airplane accidents
that made an impact on the way
the aviation industry and the
FAA conduct business today.”

The listing is part of an FAA
online safety library of “insti-
tutional knowledge” compiled
from accident investigations to
identify probable accident caus-
es and potentially, prevent any
similar occurrences. 

It is now generally agreed
that such investigations have,
over the past twenty years,
helped commercial airlines to
achieve such an extraordinary
safety record that an air disaster
is now considered a statistical
anomaly.

According to their website,
the FAA plans “to stock the
library with 40 more historical-
ly significant accidents by the
end of 2009,” with the recent
crash of AF 447 certain to be
included.

The speculated mid-air
breakup of Air France Flight
447 — for whatever reason —
and the presumed loss of all 228
on board has presented avia-

tion safety professionals with a
challenging task. With recovery
of the aircraft’s tell-tale black
box and cockpit voice recorder
(CVR) considered unlikely,
experts are analysing the “fly-
by-wire” aircraft’s automatical-
ly generated maintenance alerts
indicating that a string of mal-
functions resulted in an even-
tual loss of cabin pressure and
complete electrical failure.

In a fly-by-wire system, elec-
tronic impulses are sent to air-
craft controls instead of direct
mechanical connections.

The effect of widely dispersed
thunderstorms towering up to
50,000 feet and producing
updrafts of up to 100 miles per
hour “that would have really
rocked that plane when it hit
it,” has not been completely
ruled out, in addition to human
error, flawed assumptions, pre-
existing failures, unintended
consequences of design choic-
es, terrorism and possible
organisational lapses.

With regard to the Air Traffic
Control system, with a Future
Air Navigation System (FANS)
using satellite technology still
some years away, the question
persists as to, “Why are we fol-

lowing airplanes across the
ocean with World War II radio
technology? We’re still using
ground-based radar for the
ATC airspace system instead of
the GPS that can tell me how to
get to my driveway.”

An organisational lapse was
claimed to be behind the deci-
sion in 2000 to purchase a $3
million radar to replace the one
installed at the then-Nassau
International Airport in 1986,
but which, to date, remains
“mothballed” due to lack of
necessary software and upgrad-
ing. 

On the ill-fated Air France
flight, the passenger comple-
ment was an airborne ‘Tower
of Babel’, with “the democrati-
sation of air travel” reflected in
the mix of nationalities
onboard: 61 French citizens; 58
Brazilians; nine Chinese; nine
Italians; six Swiss; five British;
five Lebanese; four Hungari-
ans; two Americans and others
from a total of 32 countries,
from Estonia to Gambia to
Morocco to the Philippines. 

SIMON ARTZI
Nassau,
June, 2009.

EDITOR, The Tribune.

Many of us who served in the
Public Service had the option
of joining one or more group
medical plans offered by local
insurance companies. 

However, many of us
also joined the Bahamas Pub-
lic Services Union Medplan and
remained with the BPSU even
after retirement. 

It is believed that this same
option was available to public
servants in the Health Ministry
as well as other Ministries and
Departments.

Why did not Health Ministry
employees take advantage of
this option for themselves and
their families? 

Also, are there still national
insurance benefits payable to
workers?

With the deep recession now
being experienced world wide,
it is difficult to justify any addi-
tional expenditure because rev-
enues have been decreasing in
our main industries of tourism
and financial services, while
there are current operational
overhead payments which have
to be met.

The traditional ways of
attacking this dilemma are
either to cut expenditure or
raise new taxes.

As one can readily appreci-
ate, many businesses here in
The Bahamas and world wide
have had to close and employ-
ees discharged when expendi-
ture exceeds income, and cus-
tomers are not buying their
product. 

This can be seen in the auto-
mobile industry in the States.
Similarly, tourists from our
main markets are not travelling
as they used to. 

Hence our industry has suf-
fered a down-turn.

More taxes are not the
answer either due to the job
losses and increases in public
spending for social services in
respect of those who have lost
jobs. Excessive borrowing is not
a prudent way out because the
loans have to be repaid with
interest by ourselves and pos-

sibly future generations. Fur-
ther, there are international
organisations who closely mon-
itor such activities by develop-
ing countries.

So one wonders in amaze-
ment why there are people who
are so unreasonable in these dif-
ficult times as to raise the topic
of more money for themselves
from the public purse.

Private sector businesses can-
not continue to operate when
their overheads reach a certain
limit and neither can any gov-
ernment make “blood out of
stone” and spend money which
they do not have. 

Why is this so difficult for
some Bahamians to under-
stand?

CONCERNED
BAHAMIAN
Nassau,
June, 2009.
(It’s because they don’t want

to understand, and if our read-
ers would examine more close-
ly what is happening they will
see politics stirring the pot of
controversy. The unsophisticat-
ed worker is always a useful
ingredient. — Ed)
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IN DECEMBER 2001 The Tribune did an
exposé on how employees, aided and abetted by
unscrupulous doctors, were abusing “sick leave”
benefits. Employers complained that the abuse
was costing them thousands of dollars each
year.

One retail outlet with a staff of about 250
Bahamians said that in the month of January
that year it had lost a total of 1,672 hours or 209
working days by staff being out “sick.” The sick
benefits “for the month of January were over
$10,000,” The Tribune was told.

We took the name of the doctors in question
and sent a robustly healthy looking reporter to
get a sick note. 

The first doctor sent a nurse out to the wait-
ing room to get the details from our “patient.”
Back she came, not with an invitation to see
the doctor, but with a sick note for the time
our reporter had requested. 

The same reporter then went to a second
doctor, only this time he decided to tell the
doctor that he needed a sick note because he
wanted to spend some time in Miami at a social
function and the note was the only way that he
could get off work.

The doctor was most obliging, asked him how
many days he thought he’d need, and wrote up
the required note — no examination. Each doc-
tor in a matter of minutes had made about $68
by being an accomplice in dishonesty.

Over a week ago more than 50 per cent of
this country’s hospital nursing staff staged a
“sick-out” — both in Nassau and Freeport.

They were protesting the fact that their group
health insurance plan, promised for this year,
had to be postponed until next year because of
insufficient funds. 

There was a possibility that they could receive
the insurance sooner if the economic climate
improved. 

The nurses were having none of it, and so
they walked out. 

It was soon obvious that, although they were
calling their little interlude a “sick-out”, from
their public statements it was obvious that it
was a strike. In the end the Prime Minister got
a Supreme Court injunction ordering them back
to work, failing which they would be in con-
tempt of court.

When Sir Burton Hall’s order was read to
more than 200 nurses called to a meeting Mon-
day night by the Bahamas Nurses Union (BNU)
for that purpose, many insisted that they were
still sick.

Many also made it clear that they intended to
take all of their sick days, defy the court order,
risk being held in contempt and ordered to jail.
By the remarks of some of them it seemed that
they had doctors who would readily give them
the needed sick note.

Apparently, in some of these civil service
contracts, a specified number of “sick” days is
written into the contract as a part of the employ-
ee’s entitlement — sick or not sick, they are
extra days off. This, of course, is all wrong. If
they can take off without being sick, then the
“rest days” should be called just that, because
sickness it is not.

However, it appears that to justify this, they
have to have a doctor’s sick slip.

This article is being written for those doctors
who might become a party to their little enter-
prise — those nurses, that is, who are not sick.
This in no way refers to nurses who might have
a genuine illness.

In his sworn affidavit for the Supreme Court,
Mr Herbert Brown, managing director of the
Public Hospitals Authority, said he knew of
“no outbreak of any epidemic or other conta-
gious illness at any of the public hospital facili-
ties that would explain the widespread illness
among the nurses employed at the various facil-
ities” that would account for the 303 who called
in sick on June 8, and daily after that in varying
numbers.

We are writing this as a red flag of warning to
doctors who might have sympathy for nurses
who want “sick” notes, not because they are
sick in the ordinary sense of the word, but
because they are angry with their employer and
want to push an issue.

On June 15 the Supreme Court ordered the
nurses to return to work immediately or face
contempt charges that could mean jail and the
seizing of union funds.

But this is a warning to others — especially
the doctors —who might get caught up through
sympathy in this dispute. 

The court has warned that anyone who does
anything to help the nurses break the terms of
the court order, may also he held in contempt of
court and may be committed to prison or fined
or “have his assets seized.”

So we suggest to doctors that their sick slips
should go to genuinely sick patients, especially
in view of the testimony of the head of the hos-
pital authority that he doesn’t know of any epi-
demic that would take down so many healthy
nurses at the same time.

Difficult to justify
extra spending in
these tough times

LETTERS
letters@tribunemedia.net

Dishonesty not a good policy
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Lessons emerging from Air France disaster

          



n By NATARIO 
McKENZIE
Tribune Staff Reporter
nmckenzie@tribunemedia.net

A CRIME scene investi-
gator testified in the
Supreme Court yesterday
that murder accused
Shimeakima Pratt claimed to
have stabbed Defence Force
officer Gary Carey with a rat
tail comb last August.

The trial into Carey’s
death opened before Senior
Supreme Court Justice Anita
Allen yesterday. Pratt, 31,
who is represented by attor-
ney Romona Farquharson,
is accused of causing the
death of Petty Officer
Carey, 54, on Sunday,
August 17, 2008. The vic-
tim was found dead in her
Minnis Subdivision apartment.

Detective Constable Napoleon Sands, a crime scene technician
attached to the Carmichael Road Division, told the court that
when he arrived at Pratt’s apartment on August 17, he saw Carey
laying face up in a pool of blood in the front room.

Shirtless
He told the court that Carey was shirtless and was only wearing

black sweat pants.
DC Sands said the victim appeared to have been foaming at

the mouth and nose and had puncture wounds in his chest. He said
he also saw that Carey’s right eye had been injured.

The officer said that upon entering the western bedroom, he
observed what appeared to be droplets of blood on the floor and
condom packets near the bed.

He told the court that he also discovered a mop in the bathroom
soaked with what appeared to be blood, and that he collected
swabs of blood from the deceased and a brown pill from the dining
room table.

DC Sands said that Pratt had told him that Carey was known to
take a male enhancement pill.

Sands testified that he took photographs of the scene and took the
mop, brown pill, swabs, and two towels with suspected blood on
them to the police forensic lab for testing on September 3.

He testified that he, several officers and the accused returned to
the apartment on August 22, and that the accused took them to the
western bedroom and showed them a rat tail comb with which
she claimed she had stabbed Carey. 

The officer told the court that Pratt appeared calm and collect-
ed at the time.

During cross-examination by Ms Farquharson, DC Sands admit-
ted that Pratt had co-operated fully with police in their investiga-
tion and that no blood had been pouring from the puncture wounds
in Carey’s chest. The officer also admitted that he did not take a pic-
ture of the brown pill on the dining room table.

The trial continues at 10am today. Deputy director of public
prosecutions Cheryl Grant-Bethel, Stephanie Pintard and Terry
Archer are prosecuting the case.
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WE SEND ‘EM PACKIN’!
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GUYANA president
Bharrat Jagdeo, incoming
chairman of CARICOM,
said regional integration
remains on course and called
on member states to support
the movement.

Speaking at a media brief-
ing ahead of the 13th meet-
ing of the Conference of
Heads of Government of
CARICOM, scheduled for
July 2-4, he  said that in light
of the fragility of the global
climate, it was critical to
affirm that “the integration
movement is as strong as
ever before.”

President Jagdeo, who is
also the lead head of govern-
ment with responsibility for
agriculture in CARICOM’s
quasi cabinet, acknowledged
that the community is grap-
pling with “unprecedented
challenges” – many of which
have been induced by the
international economic cri-
sis, but said institutional
mechanisms set up to guide
CARICOM through this
period must be allowed to
work. He emphasised that
CARICOM leaders have a
“deep desire” to work
together, and that differ-
ences of opinions are
inevitable in the face of
diversity, but do not indicate
disunity.  

Regional 
integration
movement
‘stronger
than ever’

In brief

Murder accused claimed to have stabbed Defence
Force officer with rat tail comb, court hears 

SUPREME COURT TRIAL: SHIMEAKIMA PRATT

Tim Clarke/Tribune staff
ACCUSED: Shimeakima Pratt, 31, leaving
court yesterday.
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BTC has yet to repair phone
lines mistakenly cut by work-
ers in the East Bay Street area
three weeks ago, it was
claimed yesterday.

Angry business owners, who
say the situation is impacting
their livelihood, condemned
the telecommunications
provider for failing to rectify
the situation despite promis-
ing to do so.

They also claimed that at
first, BTC officials pretended
the rain was to blame for the
lines being down, only admit-
ting that a cable had been mis-
takenly cut during a trenching
exercise after almost a week
of the phones being out of ser-
vice.

At that point, BTC workers
finally showed up to look into
the matter, but in the end only
put in an inefficient “tempo-
rary line” which is subject to
frequent disconnections, The
Tribune was told.

Meanwhile, the severed
main line can still be seen 
bundled up at the side 

of the street. 
One businessman said: “This

is incredibly disruptive to our
business and we know BTC

will not compensate us for all
the cell phone calls and drives
we have had to make to send
and receive faxes.”

BTC ‘yet to repair
cut phone lines’

BAHAMIANS are fed up with hollow speech-
es about crime and want action from the govern-
ment, a local anti-crime group said.

Bahamas Against Crime (BAC) issued a state-
ment to this effect yesterday in response to speech
by Minister of National Security Tommy Turn-
quest last week, in which he said that the Bahamas
must abandon “narrow approaches” to policing.

“While he did not explain what ‘narrow
approaches’ meant, the question that begs an
answer from the minister and the government is
whether they are now ready and willing to involve
other stakeholders in addressing crime, the 
number one problem plaguing the nation,” BAC
said.

Rev CB Moss, executive director of the group,
said: “Crime in the Bahamas is increasing daily,
which was confirmed by the to-date crime fig-
ures presented in the House of Assembly last
Monday night by Minister Turnquest. And these

figures do not include unreported crimes which by
some estimates could be as much as the reported
crimes in some categories.

“Much precious time was wasted by the
appointment of the National Crime Commission
nearly two years ago, which is proving to be
almost useless.

“While the landscape of the Bahamas is being
increasingly stained by the blood of our people,
and many victims of crime and their families are
experiencing much pain, nice speeches are being
made in parliament often designed to deflect the
serious concerns of the people.”

The statement ended by stating that the time
has come to “take off the gloves” and seriously
address the crime crisis, as well as confront those
who are failing to do their job in the fight against
crime.

“The well-being of our children and future gen-
erations is at stake,” the statement said.

Bahamians ‘want action
from government on crime’

WORK TAKING PLACE on East Bay Street (above), led to the line being
mistakenly cut.

 



n By TANEKA THOMPSON 
Tribune Staff Reporter 
tthompson@tribunemedia.net 

A WIDOW paid a $400 court
fine for not having car insurance
— although she had a Road Act
policy at the time. 

Housekeeper Annette But-
ler, 55, has spoken out to alert
other motorists covered under
the Road Act policy to be on
their guard. 

Mrs Butler crashed into
another car on April, 1 ulti-
mately causing a three-car colli-
sion in the eastern area of New
Providence. 

The Road Act coverage she
had in place at the time did not
cover the damage to the vehicles
involved in the wreck — which
cost her around $5,000 of per-
sonal savings to repair — but
Mrs Butler was shocked when
weeks later she was served with
a summons to appear in court
for not having her car insured. 

Damage
Road Act insurance protects

a policy holder from liability for
the death or bodily injury of
another person involved in a car
accident, but not for damage to
property belonging to a third
party. 

She said her husband, who
died four years ago, always han-
dled the insurance payments.
While on his deathbed, he
instructed his wife to collect
insurance papers and to contin-
ue paying for the same policy.

"Before he passed he said to
take the envelope that he always
keep in the car (to the insur-
ance company), give it to them
and they would take the old one
and give me a new one," said
Mrs Butler. "And that's what
I've been doing for the past
three years."

The summons said Mrs Butler
drove while not covered
"against third party risk insur-

ance contrary to section 8 (1)
and (3) of the Road Traffic Act,
Chapter 220."

It ordered her to appear in
Court on May, 29 to answer to
the complaint. 

She said she took the sum-
mons to her insurance company
for an explanation. She said they
were dumbfounded as Road
Act is still considered a legal
option for motorists. 

Fearing a stiff penalty, Mrs
Butler paid a fine of $600 —
$400 for not having her car
insured and $200 for not exer-
cising due care and attention
while behind the wheel — the
day before she was due to
appear in court. 

The Tribune was also given a
copy of Mrs Butler's payment
receipt and her Road Act poli-
cy, which expired a few weeks
after the accident. 

An insurance insider told The
Tribune she had not heard of a
similar case and believes Mrs
Butler was fined because of a
misunderstanding of the law. 

"The Act that (the summons)
is quoting is talking about third
party risk but they're thinking
that means third party insur-
ance. But third party risk means
you must be covered against any
bodily injury against themselves
or anyone else," said the insider.
"He probably charged her with
it and she paid it not realising, so
that means she satisfied the
judgment but it really is a ficti-
tious fine. That's like you saying
you charged with murder and
the person never existed."

Comptroller of Road Traffic
Philip Turner told The Tribune
the relevant section of the Act is
up for interpretation. 

Attempts to reach officials at
the Department of Prosecutions
or Court 6 proved fruitless. 

Two weeks after the accident,
when her policy expired, Mrs
Butler said she switched her
coverage over to Third Party
Insurance. 

THE Bahamas’ overseas
offices are being set up to
process applications for elec-
tronic passports for Bahamians
living abroad, Deputy Prime
Minister and Minister of For-
eign Affairs Brent Symonette
confirmed.

Speaking in the House of
Assembly during debate on the
$1.7 billion national budget, he
revealed that his ministry has
been given a budget of
$21,889,462 for fiscal year
beginning July 1.  

This represents a decrease of
$1,883,478 compared to the cur-
rent budget “and is sympto-
matic of the hard economic
times which we are presently
experiencing,” Mr Symonette
said.

The Passport Office is one of
the “critical areas” of the rev-
enue-generating arm of the
Ministry of Foreign Affairs, he
said. 

During the past 10 months,
the Passport Office issued
19,072 e-passports, which gen-
erated $928,010, Mr Symonette
reported.

And, the ministry’s combined
consular offices overseas
processed 1,235 e-passports,
which brought in $31,572.

“We expect to see a substan-
tial increase in these figures
during the next fiscal period
due to improvements to the
Passport Office, and our over-
seas consular offices coming
online,” he said.

The e-passport system was

officially introduced
in December 2007.
The government
signed a contract
with Indusa Global,
a Greenville, South
C a r o l i n a - b a s e d
information tech-
nology develop-
ment and consulting
firm, for an estimat-
ed $12.7 million to
provide four sys-
tems to initiate the
project.

The Internation-
al Civil Aviation Organisation,
of which the Bahamas is a
member, has mandated that by
2010, all countries must be issu-
ing machine readable or e-pass-
ports.

To correct many
of the difficulties
created by the
attempt to fulfil this
mandate, the Pass-
port Office has
occupied the second
floor of the Basden
Building on
Thompson Boule-
vard. Additional
staff was also hired,
Mr Symonette said.

He added that
the ministry is relo-
cating the section

dealing with the issuance of cer-
tificates of identity to the for-
mer Ministry of Foreign
Affairs, East Hill Street, in an
effort to reduce the number of
persons waiting for service.

Overseas offices to process e-passportsWidow with 
Road Act policy
fined $400 for 
no insurance
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A MAGISTRATE has sen-
tenced a man to two and a half
years in prison on cocaine and
weapons charges.  

Donovan Kelvin Garvey, 38,
of Grand Bahama, pleaded
guilty to charges of cocaine and
weapons possession before
Magistrate Carolita Bethel who
sentenced him on Monday.

Garvey had been charged
in 2005. Court dockets stated
that while at Freeport on Fri-
day, May 20, 2005, Garvey was
found in possession of an unli-
censed firearm, 19 rounds of .35
ammunition, and 24.2 pounds
of cocaine.

Police said that the drugs
and weapons were found at his
Freeport home. 

Man sentenced for drug
and weapons charges

Brent Symonette

 



n By ALESHA HART 

Silence is our enemy. And in
silence an entire nation shows

fundamental flaws. 

IF THE modern
Bahamas is one where

society refuses to stand against
crime I denounce my citizen-
ship today.

For two minutes that
seemed like an eternity I held

my breath at the absence of a
nation at the Bahamas
Against Crime candlelight vig-
il. 

Our country’s inability to
show up against crime said
more to me than it could ever

imagine. Lessons were taught.
Thank you Bahamas. Thank
you. Now when your grand-
mother is raped we must all
carry on with our regular day
as if nothing happened. When
your son of 14 is shot by a
stray bullet we should not be
enraged. Let’s carry on. When
your husband is robbed and
killed execution style because
he owns a business and some-
one thinks his life is too easy
we should carry on as if anoth-
er day has happened in par-
adise. Or, when your daughter
is beaten we should not look
at her blackened eyes. Just
stare at something else if she
crosses our path. Yes, let us
all be content. 

I was not interested in who
organised the Bahamas
Against Crime candlelight vig-
il. Or that I got the news a bit
late. 

It called on Bahamians to
stand against something and
I wanted to represent my fam-
ily because we stand together
against crime. 

And this morning I am
more convinced that no state-
ment is too small. And as I lit
the little white candle for an
unnamed, I made my titanic
statement along with approx-
imately 150 others. 

Perhaps we were mistaken

(those 150 who stood against
crime), and the criminal
resides in each of you and you
cannot stand because you are
the criminal. 

The deafening silence of this
nation is haunting. Crime
elicited nary a public peep
from the Bahamian people.
Whatever they felt, Bahami-
ans largely kept it to them-
selves on Monday, June 15,
2009. The nation’s deafening
silence trampled our touted
values and marked the sad-
dest outcome of this time. 

As Bahamian media should
tell its captive audience - we
are in disbelief at the submis-
sive national mood.

On that day the people did
not take to the streets. In
silence we have spoken. “We
will not forget” captured the
emotions of all who attended.
We understood that this gen-
eration of Bahamians did not
meet its duty. 

We learned that this gener-
ation was tired, we understood
that this generation faltered,
and we disrespected the mem-
ory of innocent fallen victims
and tomorrow’s victims as
well. 

Indifference to both crime
and politics may be responsi-
ble, plus the onslaught of self-
ishness spewed out by a peo-
ple unable and unwilling to
fight for anything. Is this the
story behind our violent nar-
ratives? Is this the reason that
within seconds of an apparent
retraction - and the “I will sue
you” hymnal accompanied by

the rhythmic  “my family was
insulted”- news stories and
talk shows were hectoring
people to accept an outcome,
however abhorrent—a shock-
ingly inappropriate, polarised
and unsolicited piece of
advice. Fact is, we should not
accept anything. We should
question everything. We
should be outraged in the face
of violence in any form. We
must. 

However, the partisan
media and legal brainwashing
would not have worked if it
had not found a fertile ground
in the nation’s admirable
respect for silence.

The nation’s silent compo-
sure is based on the belief that
there will always be another
day, another injustice, another
court ruling, another decision.
That there will always be
another opportunity to right
the wrongs of today. Bahami-
ans know their democracy has
so far balanced its deep con-
servatism with a flexible, lim-
ber yet sluggish indifferent
streak. The losers of today
accept defeat because they
know they can be the winners

of tomorrow. Nothing is ever
completely lost in Bahamian
politics of survival. 

You probably believe that
injustice will be rectified later.
But is it? And will it?

I’m not so sure. But the
absence of your presence is a
far more dangerous blow to
the very democratic institu-
tions the nation is being called
on to protect with obedient
silence.

Silence is consent. And by
consenting to crime, Bahami-
ans bent on keeping face
today at any cost may be send-
ing instead a message of
impunity to an increasingly
lawless class. In other words,
they can do as they please. 

I suspect that history will
not be kind to us. We have
been the perpetrators of crim-
inal usurpation. We have been
the enablers. 

The damage is done. No
amount of September demon-
strations, let alone October
political strife, will undo it.
Soon it will be in poor taste
to raise the silence issue. Prag-
matism will prevail: The Chris-
tian Council will be blasted as
uncaring, Bahamas Against
Crime will be bullied for poor
publicity, the government will
be charged with responsibility
for crime and individuals will
bear no personal accountabil-
ity. With a weakened Opposi-
tion to keep the issue of anti-
crime alive, the nation will for-
get and the criminal can legit-
imise himself just by virtue of
living in the Bahamas, as we
are a silent nation. The
process has already begun. 

I used to sleep soundly
every night knowing that the
famously resilient Bahamian
society and social system
would be there next morning
when I woke up. Not any-
more. 

How could I when we are
the sons and daughters of
silence? A silence that ensures
rape, incest, murder and theft,
to name four, continues. Now
I wonder who will speak clear-
ly if something happens to me. 
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NOTICE 
The Bahamas Cancer Centre at Centreville 
Medical Pavilion will be hosting individual 
cancer clinics with two of the world's most
renowned specialists on Monday, June 22nd. 
The clinics are open to the public. 

The Hon. Prof. Dr. Arthur Porter
PC, MD, MBA, FACR, FACRO, FAAMA 

Dr. Porter serves as Managing Director of The 
Cancer Centre and Director of Radiation 
Oncology. He is also the current Director 
General and CEO of McGill University Health 
Centre and author of more than 300 articles on 
cancer research.

Dr. Karol Sikora
MA, MBBCh, PhD, FRCR, FRCP, FFPM 

Dr. Sikora is the Director of Medical Oncology at 
The Cancer Centre. He also serves as the Dean 
of Britain's first independent Medical School at 
the University of Buckingham and is the author
of the most widely-used cancer textbook in 
graduate medical school in the United Kingdom. 

The Bahamas Cancer Centre is one of only two 
medical facilities outside the U.S. certified by the 
American College of Radiation Oncology (ACRO) 
and the only non-U.S. facility in the Western
Hemisphere to qualify for ACRO certification.   

For more information,  please contact: 502-9610. 
Centreville Medical Pavilion yy 72 Collins Avenue

The deafening silence of a nation
YOUR SAY

““SSiilleennccee iiss 
ccoonnsseenntt.. AAnndd 
bbyy ccoonnsseennttiinngg 
ttoo ccrriimmee,,
BBaahhaammiiaannss bbeenntt
oonn kkeeeeppiinngg ffaaccee
ttooddaayy aatt aannyy
ccoosstt mmaayy bbee
sseennddiinngg iinnsstteeaadd
aa mmeessssaaggee ooff
iimmppuunniittyy ttoo aann
iinnccrreeaassiinnggllyy
llaawwlleessss ccllaassss.. 
IInn ootthheerr wwoorrddss,,
tthheeyy ccaann ddoo aass
tthheeyy pplleeaassee..””

Share your news
The Tribune wants to hear
from people who are
making news in their
neighbourhoods. Perhaps
you are raising funds for a
good cause, campaigning
for improvements in the
area or have won an
award.
If so, call us on 322-1986
and share your story.

           



its details on the planned BTC
dividend and Central Bank prof-
it transfer, clearly shows the Gov-
ernment is desperate to get its
hands on any revenues it can in a
bid to fill the $374 million total
fiscal deficit, keep the national
debt under control and dampen
the looming public finances crisis.

The IMF said Government’s
projected revenues of $1.411 bil-
lion for 2009-2010 were some
$151 million higher than antici-
pated. 

Apart from the $37 million rev-
enue gain detailed here, the high-
er forecasts were said to be based
on legal and administrative
improvements to Customs admin-
istration and $114 million in extra
real property taxes and business
licence fee.

If the Government’s projec-
tions came true, the IMF agreed
with its Budgetary projections
that the GFS fiscal deficit —
which strips out $88 million in
debt principal redemption—
would come in at $286 million or
3.9 per cent of gross domestic
product (GDP).

Yet the Fund warned: “The
yield from planned revenue mea-
sures appears uncertain, given the
reliance on improvements in tax
administration. If revenues/pri-
vatisation receipts are lower than
planned or take longer to materi-
alise, additional expenditure
adjustment may be required in
order to contain the deficit at 5.8
per cent of GDP or below.”

The IMF then reiterated that
“structural revenue measures are
needed to buttress medium-term
debt sustainability,” which is code

speak for: “New or increased tax-
es.”

While the Budget projections
placed the Government on a
course to reduce the overall fiscal
deficit by 1.5 per cent of GDP by
the 2011-2012 fiscal year, largely
through reduced public spending,
it would not be enough to get the
Bahamas back on track to reduce
its debt-to-GDP ratio to 30-35 per
cent in the medium term.

Highlighting inflexibilities and
rigidities in civil servant and pub-
lic sector wages, and the
Bahamas’ social security and
infrastructure needs, the IMF
warned: “While this level of
expenditure containment would
flatten the increase of the debt
trajectory, it would not change
medium-term debt dynamics. 

“Given the need to protect pri-

ority social and infrastructure
spending, and rigidities in the
public sector wage bill, a struc-
tural change on the revenue side
would likely still be needed to
achieve the authorities’ medium-
term objective of reducing debt
back to 30–35 per cent of GDP.”

“Heavy risks on the down side”
still faced the Bahamian econo-
my, with the IMF adding that its
forecast of a 9.2 per cent drop in
tourism earnings for 2009 was in
line with the January-April drop
in tourist arrivals.

“Sea arrivals were up by 5.5
per cent over the same period last
year, partly reflecting increased
demand for shorter and cheaper
cruise trips. However, tourists
arriving by air — who spend three
times as much daily as cruise
tourists and stay six times longer

— dropped by 15.5 per cent,” the
IMF said.

“The number of commercial
property acquisitions by non-
Bahamians dropped 36 per cent
compared to the first quarter of
2008, with the total value 
($70 million) declining by 65 per
cent. 

“Similarly, the number of resi-
dential property purchases by
non-Bahamians dropped by 19
per cent, with a decline in total
value of 25 per cent.” 
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The Mercedes M-Class.
Beauty, brains and brawn.

T YREFLEX S TAR MOTORS
Call us today for your new Mercedes-Benz M-Class at 325.4961
Wulf f Road, P. O. Box N 9123, Nassau, The Bahamas • Fax: 323.4667

When you think of the average SUV on
the road today, you think of road-
hogging, air-polluting gas guzzlers 
that wouldn’t know the meaning of 
high precision and fuel efficiency if it 
were emblazoned on their windshields.
But there is an alternative. The refined 
M-Class from Mercedes-Benz. 

With its superior German styling utilising
only high-grade materials, its robust
engine power delivering exemplary 
turn-on-a-dime performance whilst still
being frugal on fuel and its handling of
pot-holed roads and 1.5 ft. flooded
streets, the Mercedes-Benz M-Class is
clearly the best choice in SUVs.

York from May 29
to June 3.

“The patient
e x p e r i e n c e d
symptoms upon
returning to the
B a h a m a s a n d
i m m e d i a t e l y
sought medical
attention,” the
Ministry said.
The patient has
undergone tests
for possible influenza and is vol-
untarily self-quarantined at
home.

A specimen was sent to an
external laboratory and results
confirming the presence of the
virus were received by the Min-
istry of Health on Monday
evening.

The first confirmed case of the
Influenza A (H1N1) virus in the
Bahamas occurred in a young
American tourist who arrived in
the Bahamas on a flight from
New York on May 25.

At that time, staff at the Lyn-
den Pindling International Air-
port, Immigration and Customs
officials and hotel personnel
were among a group of less than
20 people who were tested for
the influenza virus.

It was determined shortly
afterwards that the tourist had
not infected anyone in the
Bahamas.

In this second confirmed case,
the Surveillance Unit of the
Department of Public Health is
also involved with the tracing
and monitoring of all people
who have been in close contact
with the patient.

Health Minister Dr Hubert
Minnis could not release any fur-
ther information regarding the
identity of the patient yesterday.

Also yesterday, the Florida
Keys also confirmed its first case
of swine flu.

The Monroe County Health
Department reported that a
young girl was treated for the
virus last week.

The Ministry of Health reit-
erated that precautionary mea-
sures against contracting the
virus include covering your nose
and mouth with a tissue when
you cough or sneeze, disposing
of the tissue in the trash after
use, along with frequent hand
washing with soap and water.  

“Additionally, if you are expe-
riencing flu like symptoms, to
decrease the potential spread,
avoid contact with others, and
stay away from group settings,”
the ministry said.

THE Cabinet Office has announced that
an official funeral for Milo Boughton But-
ler Jr, former Speaker of the House of
Assembly and parliamentarian, will be held
on Monday, June 22, at Christ Church
Cathedral, George Street.

Most Rev Drexel W Gomez, Archbish-
op, Rt Rev Gilbert Thompson, Assistant
Bishop, the Rev Dr James B Moultrie and
the Venerable Archdeacon James E Pala-
cious will officiate. The ceremony of inter-
ment will follow at the Eastern Cemetery,
Dowdeswell Street.

Public
Mr Butler’s body will lie in state in the

foyer of the House of Assembly from 11am
to 5pm on Friday and Saturday from 9am
to 5pm. The general public is invited to

view the remains and sign the Book of
Condolences.

The House of Assembly will be draped
in the colours of mourning and flags at
both Houses of Parliament will be flown at
half mast beginning on Friday, June 19
until after the funeral.

Mr Butler, the third son and sixth child
of the late Sir Milo B Butler Sr, and Lady
Caroline Butler, was born on November
30, 1936 in Nassau.

He received his primary education at
Worrell’s School and Eastern Senior
School and his secondary education at
Government High School. 

Mr Butler later attended Dundee Tech-
nical College, Dundee Scotland and Middle
Temple Inns of Court, London, England.

Mr Butler ran unsuccessfully as a Pro-
gressive Liberal Party candidate during
the 1967 general elections for the City of

Nassau. He served as Chairman of the PLP
in 1969; as a Senator from 1969 to 1974,
becoming Vice President of the Senate
from 1972 to 1974.

In August 1974 Mr Butler became the
first Bahamian Consul-General, serving in
Miami, Florida, from 1974 through 1977.

Election
In 1977 he successfully contested the

seat for the Pinedale Constituency, which
he represented  until 1992. During his
tenure in Parliament, Mr. Butler served as
Deputy Speaker of the House of Assembly
from 1987 to 1991 and as Speaker 
from 1991 until the General Election of
1992.

During his political career he served as
Chairman of the following entities: the

Transport Licensing Board; Town Plan-
ning Committee; the Bahamas Broadcast-
ing and Television Commission; the
Bahamas Electricity Corporation and the
Gaming Board.

He grew up in the Anglican tradition
and served as an altar boy. 

Until his death, Mr Butler was a faithful
member of St Matthew’s Anglican Church,
serving as a member of the Vestry, the
Bishop’s Council, the Synod and the
Provincial Synod. 

Mr Butler is survived by his sons, Milo
III, Godwin and Jevon; daughters, Angela
and Bernadette; former wives, Winfred,
and Comfort Baker; brothers, Raleigh Sr,
Elder Basil and Matthew, sister, Juanita;
three grandsons, four granddaughters, four
sisters-in-law, three aunts, 20 nephews, and
16 nieces, including Labour Minister of
State Loretta Butler-Turner.

Official funeral for Milo B Butler Jr, former House Speaker

FROM page one Govt to take $30m dividend from BTC

Swine flu
FROM page one

Hubert Minnis
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WITH the restoration of the
former Collins House on
Shirley Street, the Antiquities,
Monuments and Museums
Corporation (AMMC) is lead-

ing the way as downtown Nas-
sau gets a facelift.

Now called Centreville
House, headquarters of the
AMMC, it is being adorned
with lignum vitae, yellow elder
and a wide range of Bahamian

flower and fruit trees and
shrubs.

Bahamian environmental
artist, Antonius Roberts, has
been contracted to advise
AMMC on creating a space
that educates and appeals to
all the senses.

And, with Tanya Ferguson
of the Bahamas National
Trust as a consultant to the
landscaping project, they went
about creating what AMMC
director Dr Keith Tinker
described as “an oasis within a
mad setting.”

In this “oasis” can also be
found madera, horseflesh,
coco plum, joujou, sea grape,
coconut, sour sop, gua-

malamee, among others.
Trees chosen were recom-

mended by the Bahamas
National Trust and the Nature
Conservancy to make sure the
botanical representation is
authentic and historically cor-
rect.

The grounds also feature a
pond, replica of a Lucayan
chief’s hut, and facilities where
children can play and learn
about the way of life of the
Lucayans, who inhabited the
Bahamas when Christopher
Columbus arrived more than
500 years ago.

Mr Roberts said his goal is
for visitors to enter and exit
the green-space at Centreville
House “with a five-dimen-
sional experience.”

“The guest will have com-
mitted to memory the sight,
sounds, smell, touch and taste
of the Bahamian historical and
cultural heritage,” he said.

The project is a product of
the Lindroff Development
Company which drafted the
proposal to the AMMC board
and assists with the funding.

Orian Lindroff, owner of
the company, is a graduate of
St Andrew’s School, class of
1961, when the school was still
located at Centreville House.

A similar project is the
Retreat at the Bahamas
National Trust Headquarters.

But Centreville House is
going a step beyond, Mr
Roberts said, by facilitating
space for a large capacity of
visitors with the grounds being
used for weddings or cultural
heritage programmes.

“There is a revitalisation of
downtown (Nassau) that has
to take place and we thought
that we would jump-start the
process by providing an adap-
tive use of a green space for
having a series of functions,”
said AMMC director Dr  Tin-
ker. 

Corporation chairman Dr
Davidson Hepburn noted that
Bahamian colonial architec-
ture “is unique to our envi-
ronment” and preserving what
is left of it has always been a
passion of his.

“I was very happy to have
this opportunity to deal with
this building,” he said, to bring
it back to its former glory, to
fit it into the revitalisation of
downtown.

“There are so many projects
we could do if we begin to
look at this place as a state-
of-the-art building and
grounds for the general public
and tourists alike,” he said.

With development, many
historic buildings have been
lost. Dr Hepburn pointed to
the once quaint colonial-style
Dowdeswell Street.

“You can’t even find one of
those buildings to represent
what was there” he said. “So
we are trying to preserve what
we can of whatever is left, to

keep that flavour of what we
had in the Bahamas.”

Dr Hepburn told of AMM-
C’s ‘Miracle Mile Project’
from George Street (west) to
Church Street (east).

The purpose is to restore all
the outstanding old buildings
along that route. 

“We want Bahamians to be
aware of their culture, history,
and heritage,” said Dr Hep-
burn.

In partnership with the gov-
ernment to give downtown
Nassau a new look, “at
AMMC we are leading the
way in promoting a greater
understanding and apprecia-
tion of the natural and cultur-
al sites of Old Nassau,” said
Dr Hepburn.
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Centreville House becomes ‘an oasis’
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AMMC CHAIRMAN Dr Davidson Hepburn outside the new Centre-
ville House, formerly Collins House. 
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Harbour
Bay   

SSiizzeess XXSS ttoo 33XXLL

Sale on Selected items 
Up to 50.% Off 

ALL CLOTHING 

VISIT US ON THE WEB 
aebahamas.com

For Fashion news & specials 

‘an oasis’ A POND with a fountain is also
featured at the ‘oasis’ that 
Centreville House has become.

BELOW LEFT: Restoration
begins at home. AMMC chair-
man Dr Davidson Hepburn,
oversees restoration of the for-
mer Collins House, Shirley
Street, AMMC headquarters. 



change their  mind.  They
changed their mind and decid-
ed they would go on a sick-out.
Well, we understood that they
were disappointed and figured
that they would stay out for a
day or two and then they would
sit down and talk to the gov-
ernment. 

“But it appears that people
believe that it is the govern-
ment who ought to go chasing
behind them while they were
out sick. No, that's not the way
how I do business." 

He said government waited
a week before filing an injunc-
t ion in the Supreme Court
which ordered that the nurses
return to work or face possi-
ble jail time if found they had
exceeded their allotted sick
days. 

He added that it was not
until a week into the sick-out
that BNU decided to take the
proper legal route and file a
trade dispute with the Depart-
ment of Labour.

"They waited an entire week
before they followed the law.
As soon as they followed the
law the Department of Labour
fixed the date to hear the par-
t ies ,  and the  government
showed up. The government
had discussions with them this
morning, they didn't get very
far, but the government had
discussions because the gov-
ernment insists that they must
go back to work first."

Mr Ingraham said govern-
ment will only engage in mean-
ingful  discussions with the
union if public health facilities
return to a state of normalcy. 

"But  the  government  i s
unwilling and will not budge
from its position of having dis-
cussions and agreements while
they cont inue their  i l legal

strike. They are an
essent ia l  service ,
essential  services
are not allowed to
do that.

"If  you want
resul ts ,  l i s ten to
what I say, kindly
go back to work and
I will cause the min-
ister of labour and
the minister health
to meet with you on
Monday morning
and resolve the mat-
ter ,  Monday.  I t ' s
not a big issue to
resolve," he said. 

Meanwhile the BNU is plan-
ning on filing an application to
overturn the injunction filed by
government  which court
ordered the nurses who called
in sick to return to work or
face jail time, said lawyer and
trade unionist Obie Ferguson,
who represents BNU.

Mr Ferguson said the stage is
now set for possible industrial
action explaining that Minister
of Labour Dion Foulkes has to
decide  tomorrow on the
union's application for a strike
vote. 

He insisted that the sick-out
was not industrial action as the
nurses  involved had not
exceeded their allotted 20 sick
days a year.

Bahamas Nurses Union Pres-
ident Cleola Hamilton told The
Tribune she was disappointed
in the outcome of the meeting
adding that it was evident the
government had "no sense of
urgency" in resolving the issue. 

"We haven't gotten any con-
clusion from the government,"
she told The Tribune after the
meeting.

Details on exactly how many
nurses continued to call in sick
yesterday were unclear up to
press time although The Tri-
bune understands that while
some were said to be gradually
returning to work, those nurses
with  doctor 's  s ick  notes
remained off the job. 

Ms Hamilton could not con-
firm if the sick-out continued
yesterday.  

Mr Ferguson said the union
simply wants a written agree-
ment outlining a date when the
promised insurance scheme

would be  imple-
mented. 

"The union is not
adverse to a differ-
ent date they just
want to s i t  down
and come to  an
agreement and be
treated with
respect. . .it's in the
interest  of  the
union to serve the
Bahamian public
but you can't just
give one set of peo-
ple insurance and
not give it to anoth-

er set," he said. 
One angry nurse told The

Tribune yesterday said gov-
ernment's delay in providing
comprehensive health insur-
ance may drive many qualified
nurses out of the country to
seek better employment. 

"Government has been fight-

ing for years to keep nurses
here and when those scouts
(from abroad) come over they
come with packages and they
are not going to stop until they
have a mass exodus. How can
they expect to keep us here
when they have no incentives
to keep us here?" asked the
nine year veteran of Princess
Margaret Hospital. 

Yesterday, Dr Minnis said
publ ic  heal th  nurses  were
returning to work gradually
and sa id  PMH, c l in ics  on
Grand Bahama and the family
islands were functioning. 

"I have not gotten a com-
plete report but I know staff
s ince  yesterday have been
returning to work slowly. 

“And all  the clinics were
open, all clinics on the family
islands and Grand Bahama
were functioning," Dr Minnis
said.  

Group deal in Mayaguana, Prime Minister
Ingraham said that his government did
not “interfere” in that deal, “but go to
Mayaguana now and see what is happen-
ing.”

“Some of the agreements, Mr Speaker,
as I said we reviewed, some of them
required other action by the government
agencies which members opposite also
proved incapable of concluding before
they were kicked out of office in 2007,” Mr
Ingraham said.

Outlining how the Opposition cam-
paigned during its term in office as if most
of these projects had been signed and con-
cluded as “done deals”, Mr Ingraham said
he watched with amazement the cover-
age on the local news of the BahaMar
deal.

“So even when these investment pro-

posals were only in their conceptual stages
they were marketed to the public as done
deals. We never saw so many announce-
ments and ribbon cutting for ideas as we
were treated to between 2002 and 2007.

“You know, Mr Speaker, for routine
things, the appointment of Boards, we
would sit down in the Cabinet Office and
decide these are the appointed Boards
and we would send the conclusion out to
the various ministries and the permanent
secretaries would get in touch with the
people, etc, and they are appointed to the
Boards. Our first set of Board appointees
come to an end of this month, June, we
appointed the first set for two years.

“But when they won, they went from
place to place with big TV cameras, ‘I’ve

come to announce the Board for this cor-
poration today’. A big show!” Mr Ingra-
ham remarked.

Noting how he had not intended to
speak long, but now was stirred on to do
so because of the contribution earlier yes-
terday by Opposition Leader Perry
Christie, Mr Ingraham said that the PLP
“never” accepts blame for anything.

“If it’s good, oh yes. They blame others
for failures and shortcomings. They would
demonize others and be repetitious in
their stories. I heard the Leader of the
Opposition saying how when they invited
him down at Clifton that he felt he was not
appropriately dealt with at the ceremo-
ny — but he was invited.

“When we built a $12 million port in

Marsh Harbour and it was time to open it,
they faxed something to my law office the
night before. The night before! Now I
have to give it to the Leader of the Oppo-
sition; he called me one time when they
were opening the new clinic in Fox Town,
and I asked him ‘which clinic, you mean
the one I built?’

“I said man that has been built for sev-
eral years. But he still has his name on
the plaque. Or go to Dundas Town any
day and look at that little box building
clinic and see the big plaque there and
see how many people they took down to
open it. And then they closed it!” Mr
Ingraham laughed.

The Prime Minister also took grave
exception to Mr Christie’s claim that the

poor and under-privileged were better off
under Mr Christie’s administration as their
party was more sensitive to “their needs.”

“I never tire of telling him that he can
never ever feel for them like me. You
can’t ever! You have never been one of
us! You can’t be one of us! You don’t
understand us! You are not one of us!
Don’t pretend to be one of us. You never
even slept next to one of us!” Mr Ingra-
ham exclaimed.

Mr Ingraham also advised Mr Christie
not to refer to him as a “rich man.”

“You shouldn’t call me a rich man
because I am not. But you are. And you
should not even get in that conversation.
Let’s not even go down that road,” he
said.
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PM gets tough with nurses
FROM page one

Hubert Ingraham

FROM page one PM criticises PLP for complaints over contracts
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times. 
He claimed the PLP too faced

challenges when it came to power
in 2002 — the recent 9/11 attack in
New York City, and the looming
war in Iraq — but yet managed to
take “bold” action to better con-
ditions.

Mr Christie noted that his
administration left the country with
increased revenue flows and exter-
nal reserves, enhanced GDP
growth and reduced unemploy-
ment.

The PLP leader alleged that,
having revealed a lack of ideas, the
current Government “needs help”,
must “stop being bloody minded”
but instead turn to other “brains”
in the country to find new solu-
tions to the problems it faces.

He suggested that even though
— as Prime Minister Hubert Ingra-
ham stated — “the economic text-
books” have no answers to the cur-
rent crisis, the Government must
“act as the sovereign Government
of the Bahamas” and may find a
“way outside of the textbooks to
make progress.”

“It must be the obligation of the
government to protect and pro-
mote the highest possible level of
sustainable employment for all
Bahamians,” said Mr Christie.

“The country needs today to
have the Government act on my
recommendation to appoint a
group to devise strategies to assist
the country in the way ahead.”

One taskforce could “aggres-
sively assess the current hotel prop-
erties and their challenges and
those investments that were in
process prior to the global reces-
sion,” said Mr Christie

Another could focus on the
financial services sector, looking
at ways to “create new products
and whatever it takes to be more
competitive and productive, again
with a view to creating jobs,” he
proposed.

Meanwhile, he questioned
whether more could have been
done to save jobs recently lost in
the hotel sector, particularly
through the “creative and sus-
tained” use of financial conces-
sions which could be offered to
hotels.

The Opposition leader added
that the operators of the now
closed Four Seasons Emerald Bay
hotel in Exuma had previously
made known to Government their
“frustrations” about the cost of
operating in Exuma and he ques-
tioned why further subsidy was not
provided by the Government to
help them remain afloat. 

“They felt some consideration
should have been given to Emerald
Bay (by the Government) in light
of their remote location and their
cost structure,” said Mr Christie.

He called on Government to
work as “closely as is necessary”
with the Bahamar developers to
bring the “critical” Cable Beach
project to fruition, and the jobs
that will come with it, as well as
to make “every effort” to
“relaunch” the I-Group develop-
ment in Mayaguana which now
employs a small fraction of those it
did in previous years.

Meanwhile, he said that a recent
public address by BahaMar CEO
Sarkis Izmirlian in which he
revealed how the government of
Qatar rejected the option of invest-
ing in BahaMar during this reces-
sion, but instead chose to invest
millions in a 250-room hotel in
Cuba, should cause the Govern-
ment to “ask why these things are
happening.”

Mr Christie stated that just as
Sol Kerzner and the Atlantis devel-
opment showed investors that
“money could be made in the
Bahamas” in the hotel industry,
the country cannot allow hotel clo-
sures and poor performance to
“redefine the image of our econo-
my.”

Speaking of its potential to pro-
mote the Bahamas as a financial
services centre, to attract foreign
direct investment and through this
to create jobs in the construction
industry and the financial services
sector, Mr Christie said Govern-
ment must re-establish the Min-
istry of Financial Services and
Investments, set up under his
administration. 

“This government did not main-
tain such a ministry and as a result,
we believe they made a mistake,”
said Mr Christie.

Turning to the youth, the Oppo-
sition leader claimed they have
been ignored in this year’s budget,
and proposed that Government
appoint a “special commission” to
make recommendations on how
more jobs can be created for young
people soon to graduate from col-
lege abroad, the College of the
Bahamas and high school.

“Left alone, many of them may
have to wait years to have their
legitimate needs met.

“The Government cannot
ignore this issue. We must all be
engaged in...working relentlessly
identifying workable economic
options for them,” added Mr
Christie.

Prior to lay-offs at Exuma’s
Emerald Bay hotel and the emer-
gence of thousands of new gradu-
ates, figures released by the
Department of Statistics in March
pegged unemployment at the high-
est level in 15 years.

It was found that 12.1 per cent of
people in New Providence and 14.6
per cent in Grand Bahama were
out of a job at that time.

Christie
FROM page one
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PAGE 18 • Nadal, Safina seeded No. 1 for Wimbledon...

‘Mighty Mouse’
to represent the 
Bahamas at ‘09
World Games...

See page 17

TO bridge the gap between academic and
athletic excellence, the local governing body
for track and field is gearing up to honour its
top athletes of the ‘08-09 school year.

The Bahamas Association of Athletic
Associations is set to recognise its top junior
athletes at the All Bahamian Award Cere-
mony.

The official presentations are scheduled
for 7:30pm June 23 at Government House.

Governor General Arthur D Hanna is the
patron of this event and will be presenting the
awards. 

A reception will follow the award ceremo-
ny.

The All Bahamian awards are given to
high school track and field athletes who have
met the standards set by the BAAA for their
events and also maintained a 2.5 or higher
grade point average for the academic year. 

Each year an honourary All Bahamian
award is given to a male and female athlete
who have contributed to the sport of track
and field in the past. 

The award was modeled after the All
American awards which honours outstanding
college athletes in academics and sports.

AAllll--BBaahhaammiiaann TTeeaamm
MEN
Warren Fraser - 100m, 200m
Marcus Thompson - 100m
Karlton Rolle - 200m
Jeffrey Gibson - 400m, 400m hurdles
Chris Nesbitt - 800m, 1500m
Kenneth Wallace-Whitfield - 800m, 1500m
Laquardo Newbold - 1500m
Kristin Hepburn - 110m hurdles
Nejmi Burnside - 400m hurdles
Jaquan Williams - 110m hurdles
Dennis Bain - 110m hurdles
Raymond Higgs - high jump
WOMEN
Nivea Smith - 200m
Shellyka Rolle - 400m
Rashan Brown - 400m
V'Alonee Robinson - long jump
Sparkyl Cash - long jump

HHoonnoouurraarryy AAllll BBaahhaammiiaannss
Thomas A. Robinson
Shonel Ferguson

BAAA to honour 
top junior athletes

JUST two days remain until the Bahamas’
junior national team sets off for interna-
tional competition.

The 16-18 team is slated to participate in
the 2009 Latin American Big League
Caribbean Zone Baseball Tournament, to
be held in Zulia State, Venezuela.

The tournament, hosted by Little League,
will also feature, Aruba, Curacao, Colombia,

Dominican Republic, Panama, Puerto Rico
and the host country Venezuela.

The team will be led by Richard Bain who
was recently selected in the 45th round of
the Major League Baseball draft by the
Philadelphia Phillies organisation.

Shown seated in the front row (l-r) are
Aneko Knowles, Tyrell Smith, Dale Davis Jr,
Patrick Knowles Jr, Kyle Hall and Desmond

Russell. In the second row (l-r) are Jonathan
Groezinger, Stephen Curtis, Brandon Mur-
ray, Anthony Miaulis II and Jordan Gib-
son. And in the third row (l-r) are Daniel
Cash, Patrick Waugh, Lynden Pindling,
Sedale McKenzie, Richard Bain and Leon
Cooper. Standing in the back row (l-r) are
manager Terran Rodgers and coach Patrick
Knowles Sr

Bahamas’ junior baseball
team to play in tourney

          



Our women’s national
volleyball team must 

be commended
THEY did it. They did it...
Yes, the Bahamas Volley-

ball Federation women’s
national team have qualified
for the third round of the
NORCECA 2010 World
Championships.

Despite the fact that they
played with a heavy heart,
having lost their personal pos-
sessions during a robbery of
their lockers at the gym, the
team was able to stay motivat-
ed enough to get the job done.

The team must be com-
mended, especially after
learning that they were
robbed while playing host
Barbados in a thrilling five-
setter that could have turned
things around in terms of

where their destination was
going to be for the next
round.

Had they not been side-
tracked by the robbery, who
knows what would have hap-
pened in their playoff match
against Jamaica. The team
could have easily folded up,
packed up whatever they had
left and decided to return
home.

Instead, they worked
through the three straight-set
loss to Jamaica. Had they
won, that would have put
them in a position to be able
to travel to Disneyland in
Orlando, Florida, instead of
going to Puerto Rico. 

The loss put the team in a
must-win situation against St
Lucia as the team prevailed
and in the process secured a
berth into the second round
where they will travel to Puer-
to Rico. I’m sure it didn’t mat-
ter as much to the women
where they were going as it
was who they played in the
playoffs.

This is the first time, like
the men who earned the right
to travel to Cuba in July, that
the women have reached this
far and so they should be
commended for their achieve-
ment, especially considering
the unfortunate circumstances
that they found themselves in.

It’s just so unfortunate that
the team had to go through
the ordeal that they encoun-
tered.

The team is due to return
home today, no doubt with
some remorse against the
Barbados Volleyball Federa-
tion, who just simply aban-
doned them (not the Bahamas
Volleyball Federation, as indi-
cated in Wednesday’s article).

The Bahamas Volleyball
Federation did all that they
could to ensure that the play-
ers were all relaxed and at
ease as they waited patiently
for the Barbados Police Force
to carry out their investiga-
tion, which resulted in the
majority of their items being
recovered.

Head coach Joseph “Joe
Moe” Smith is the federa-
tion’s first vice president and
national team director. Also
representing the federation
was treasurer Raymond
“Rhymes” Wilson and assis-
tant treasurer, Lloyd “Ratty”
Davis. 

In contacting the team on a
daily basis, the three men
talked constantly about their
efforts to ensure that the
ladies, including assistant
coach Jackie Conyers, were
all made comfortable even
when they had to leave the
games village for another
hotel that they had to pay for
since Monday.

How can the federation and
even the players, who have
become familiar with the
Bahamian players, turn their
backs on them in such a cri-
sis? If the situation was
reversed, I’m sure that the
Bahamas Volleyball Federa-
tion, nor the players, would
have done the same to Barba-
dos or any other country.

It just shows the level of
hospitality that the Bahamas
exhibits.

Over the years, we have
heard so many stories from
our players about the way
they are treated whenever
they travel to one of the
Caribbean Islands or Latin
American countries to com-
pete. Sometimes you just did-
n’t believe that they would
have been treated in the man-
ner that they claimed they
were.

The women’s trip to Barba-
dos is definitely the height of
it. Thank God the players
were able to recover the
majority of their possessions
and none of them were physi-
cally harmed.

They just have to put this
experience behind them and
move on. It could have hap-
pened to anyone. It’s just
unfortunate that we were the
only ones who were the vic-
tims. When they head to
Puerto Rico in August, we are
looking forward to them step-
ping up and performing just as
spectacular as they did in Bar-
bados.

Congratulations and wel-
come home ladies. We are
very proud of how you han-
dled the whole experience.
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FOR the first time in seven
years, a Bahamian has been
selected to represent the coun-
try and the region at one of the
world’s most prestigious body-
building contests.

Paul “Mighty Mouse” Wilson
has been selected to compete
at the 2009 World Games, slat-
ed for July 16 in Kaohsiung,
Taiwan. He was selected by the
International Bodybuilding
Federation to represent the
Caribbean region in the event.

At five foot two inches tall
and 152 pounds, Wilson is a 26
year-old bodybuilding champi-
on in the lightweight amateur
division.  

He started the sport nine
years ago while in high school
and spent the last eight years
dominating the sport.  

Among his titles are the
reigning Central American
Caribbean champion gold
medallist, the reigning national
lightweight champion, and the
two-time champion of the
Southern States Body Building
Competition in Fort Laud-

erdale, Florida.  
While representing the

Bahamas for the past eight
years, Wilson earned one gold,
two silvers, and a bronze medal

at four of those competitions.  
In 2006, he placed 17th out

of 71 competitors at the World
Championships in the Czech
Republic.

“I’ve been doing this sport
since I was a teenager,” Wilson
reflects.  “In fact, I entered my
first competition the day after I
graduated Faith Temple Chris-
tian High School. I became a
certified fitness instructor in
Nevada and now I’m one of the
personal fitness instructors at
Mystikal Fitness, where I also
train. All in all, I am more than
ready to compete.”

Another thing that Wilson is
ready to do is bring more atten-
tion to the sport and he’s deter-
mined to get the financial back-
ing he needs to accomplish his
goals.

“I think that bodybuilding in
the Bahamas is being stunted
because of the downturn in the
economy and the stigmatism
that goes along with the sport,”
he noted. 

“It does take a lot of money
to stick to the proper diet, the
vitamins, supplements and gym
membership but at the same
time, Bahamians have not only
proven to be successful in the
sport, but also are serious when
it comes to abusing their bodies
with steroids. I’m proud to say
that we (the Bahamas) don’t

have anyone known for drug
abuse at these competitions.”

As for his pending competi-
tion, Wilson is ready to make
the nation proud on his first trip
to Asia.

“I’m excited about going to
Chinese Taipei,” he said. “I’ve

seen some of the top notch ath-
letes at other competitions and
I’m ready. I’ve faced off against
some of them before and I
know the calibre of athletes on
that level.  Overall, I’m moti-
vated to compete and bring
what I’ve got to the forefront.”
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‘Mighty Mouse’ to represent 
Bahamas at ‘09 World Games

PAUL WILSON (centre) at a press conference with his manager Keith Rolle (left) and Danny Sumner, president
of the Bahamas Bodybuilding & Fitness Federation...

PAUL WILSON has been selected
to compete at the 2009 World
Games, slated for July 16 in
Kaohsiung, Taiwan...

      



WIMBLEDON, England
(AP) — Defending champion
Rafael Nadal and top-ranked
women's player Dinara Safina
were seeded No. 1 for Wimble-
don on Wednesday.

There were no big surprises
when the All England Club
announced the seedings for the
grass-court Grand Slam tour-
nament, which opens Monday.
The draw will be released Fri-
day.

The top-ranked Nadal has
been having trouble with his
knees the past few months and
received treatment after pulling
out of the Wimbledon warm-
up event at Queen's Club.

The Spaniard plans to test
them by playing exhibition
matches on grass against Lley-
ton Hewitt on Thursday and
Stanislas Wawrinka on Friday
at the Hurlingham Club in Lon-
don.

Wimbledon stuck closely to
the world rankings in deter-
mining the seeding lists for the
two-week tournament.

The top six spots in the men's
list follow the rankings. Five-
time champion Roger Federer
is No. 2, with Andy Murray at
No. 3. Murray won his first

grass-court title at Queen's Club
on Sunday, becoming the first
Briton to win the tournament
since Bunny Austin in 1938,
who then went on to become
the last British men's finalist at
Wimbledon.

They are followed by No. 4
Novak Djokovic, No. 5 Juan
Martin Del Porto and No. 6
Andy Roddick. 

Eighth-ranked Fernando
Verdasco is seeded No. 7 ahead
of Gilles Simon.

Marat Safin, a semifinalist last
year, is the No. 15 seed despite
being ranked 23rd, while the
big-serving Ivo Karlovic is at
No. 23 while having a ranking of
31.

Among the women, Safina of
Russia is followed by Serena
Williams and defending cham-
pion Venus Williams.

The only major change from
the rankings is 2004 Wimble-
don champion Maria Sharapova
as the No. 24 seed despite being
ranked 59th.

Sharapova has plunged down
the rankings after nine months
out with a shoulder injury but
reached the semifinals of the
Aegon Classic in Birmingham
last week.
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Nadal, Safina seeded 
No. 1 for Wimbledon
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Rafael Nadal (AP)

 



FOCOL wins airport
gas station contract

n By NEIL HARTNELL
Tribune Business Editor

A BAHAMIAN start-up
seeking to launch a ‘multiple
play’ bundle of Internet services
was yesterday said to be assess-
ing how it “should be properly
structured”, with efforts to raise
the $14 million in capital that
it needs to start operations
ongoing.

Owen Bethel, a director of
IP Solutions International
(IPSI), said the company was
still looking for investors to
pick-up the majority of its pri-
vate placement, having expand-
ed this from $6 million to $14
million after broadening the ini-
tial launch beyond the Bahamas
to include the wider Caribbean.

“It’s still in motion, but we’re
looking to see how it should be
properly structured,” Mr Bethel
said of IPSI. 

“Since we moved it up to the

regional level, we were looking
at $14 million for that. We’ve
had strong investor interest, but
certainly not to carry the major
part of it.”

When asked whether the
global recession and preceding
financial crisis had impacted IP
Solutions International’s
chances of raising the required
capital, Mr Bethel told Tribune
Business: “I think very much
so.

“The uncertainty in the finan-
cial markets, and persons want-
ing to hold on to their cash, and
it being a start-up as opposed to
an existing, established opera-
tion, lends to the risk factor.”

Mr Bethel, who heads Nas-
sau-based financial services
provider, the Montaque Group,
told Tribune Business that there
was still much interest in IP

Solutions International’s prod-
uct from its initial target cus-
tomers, chiefly private gated
communities and hotels/resorts.

“There continues to be inter-
est in it. It’s literally a matter
of being able to deliver the
intended services to them,” Mr
Bethel said.

IP Solutions International is
targeting that customer base for
a variety of services it will trans-
mit down just one Internet line,
hence the ‘Multiple Play’
description. The services will
include Internet, TV via Inter-
net Protocol, video-on-demand
(VOD) games, and Voice over
Internet Protocol (VoIP) phone
services.

Given Cable Bahamas cur-
rent cable TV monopoly, which

n By NEIL HARTNELL
Tribune Business Editor

THE Bahamas Telecommu-
nications Company’s (BTC)
practice of charging cellular cus-
tomers for receiving fixed-line
and overseas calls was yester-
day branded as an “anomaly”,
which is “not best practice and
not in the interest of the
Bahamian public going for-
ward”.

The consultation document
on retail price regulation in the
Bahamian communications
industry, published yesterday
by the committee overseeing
BTC’s privatisation, said that
while the caller usually paid for
telephone calls, it was actually
the receiving party that paid to
receive fixed-line and overseas
calls on both pre-paid and post-

paid cell phones.
Pointing out that this had “a

number of disadvantages”, the
document said this essentially
allowed BTC to ‘double dip’
through having access to “two,
overlapping sources of revenue
from incoming international
calls to cellular numbers”.

While BTC received rev-
enues from Bahamian cell
phone customers through the
“domestic charging system”, the
consultation document added:
“International arrangements
provide BTC with revenue for
the terminating service for
incoming international calls to
Bahamian mobile numbers.

“For example, when a cus-
tomer based in the US calls a
Bahamian mobile number, BTC
receives payment from the cor-
responding US operator for
delivering that call to the
Bahamian mobile customer.
Such arrangements between
operators apply irrespective of
whether a fixed or mobile num-
ber is called in the Bahamas.”

This meant BTC received
revenue from two sources for
providing the same connection
service. The BTC privatisation
committee document added
that the state-owned firm’s cel-
lular customers were also “in
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BTC cellular charging
branded an ‘anomaly’

* Practice of charging
Bahamian cellular 
customers for receipt 
of fixed-line and overseas
calls labelled ‘anti-
consumer’ by 
privatisation committee
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‘Multiple play’ start-up still seeking major $14m bite
Company assessing how it should be ‘properly structured’

n By NEIL HARTNELL
Tribune Business Editor

THE head of the Govern-
ment’s newly-established
National Training Programme
yesterday said he was “working
diligently to make this a long-
term, self-sustaining” initiative,
broadening it beyond its initial
remit because it was “critical to
our long-term economic com-
petitiveness”.

Khaalis Rolle, the newly-
elected Bahamas Chamber of
Commerce president, who is
heading the body charged by
the Government with oversee-
ing the retraining of some 1,000
unemployed Bahamians, said
private sector funding would
likely be needed long-term to
sustain the programme, the
Ingraham administration hav-
ing initially allocated $250,000
for the programme.

Pointing out that education
and training had always been
the “achilles heel” of the
Bahamian economy and soci-
ety, Mr Rolle said initiatives
such as the National Training
Programme were critical to
preparing companies and their
workforces for all eventualities,
as many had been “caught with
their pants down” by the cur-
rent recession.

“I think it is critical to our
long-term competitiveness,” Mr
Rolle said of the National
Training Programme and simi-
lar initiatives. 

“The message I’m going to
be sending, through my posi-
tion as Chamber president, is
that we need to develop a com-
petent and professional work-
force. That is through educa-
tion and training, and that has
always been our achilles heel.

“We do have a section of the
workforce that is extremely tal-
ented, and possesses some of
the brightest minds in the region
living in the Bahamas. Yet we
do, like most other countries,
have a segment that is just not
adequately prepared.”

The Bahamas, the Chamber
president added, had some

“structural deficiencies”, while
the problems and challenges of
the public school education sys-
tem were well-known. 

“Companies do not invest as
much as they should in train-
ing,” Mr Rolle said. “One of

Training initiative
must be ‘long-term
and self-sustaining’

* Chamber head looks to
make government plan 
to target unemployment
long-lasting and tackle
‘achilles heel’ that is 
‘critical to economic 
competitiveness’

* Businesses ‘caught 
with pants down’ by 
economic crisis

* Says own business, 
Bahamas Ferries, needs
well-trainied workforce 
to maintain required 
growth rate

* Private sector support 
needed to buttress 
government’s initial 
$250k funding

Khaalis Rolle
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n By NEIL HARTNELL
Tribune Business Editor

The Nassau Airport Develop-
ment Company (NAD) has
awarded the airport gas sta-
tion contract to BISX-listed

Freeport Oil Holdings (FOCOL) and its
Sun Oil subsidiary, Tribune Business was
told yesterday, with a senior executive
adding that so-called ‘incentive fees’ did
not apply to bidding on small retail con-
cession contracts.

John Spinks, NAD’s vice-president of
commercial operations, said ‘incentive
fees’ - the one-time payment of a lump
sum fee to the airport operator, as an
inducement for the paying party to be
offered the relevant contract - only
applied to larger concessions where there
was a small number of large bidders, such
as the gas station.

Tribune Business had been contacted
by some of the 150-200 Bahamian busi-
nesses and entrepreneurs who had attend-
ed a NAD briefing session on Monday,
and expressed concern about the use of

‘incentive fees’ as a tiebreaker to deter-
mine who the airport retail and restaurant
concessions would be awarded to if two
bidders were ranked equally.

These sources, who had requested
anonymity, feared that ‘incentive fees’
would provide larger, more established
companies with an advantage over small-
er firms and entrepreneurs, as their deep-
er pockets would leave them better-
placed to pay incentive fees.

The same sources suggested that after
obtaining bank financing to pay for inven-
tory and outfitting their kiosks/carts/con-

cessions at the Lynden Pindling Interna-
tional Airport (LPIA), it would be virtu-
ally impossible for smaller bidders to
finance an ‘incentive fee’ with either equi-
ty or further debt.

They also expressed concern that, by
squeezing out small Bahamian business-
es, the airport would lack a distinctly
‘Bahamian’ feel in terms of products and
identity, thus failing to meet NAD’s
objective of providing ‘a sense of place’.

Responding to those concerns, Mr

* Airport kiosk and cart tenants will have to re-bid for contracts 
when new US departure terminal comes on stream

* But NAD executive says ‘incentive fees’ only apply to large contracts
with small bidder numbers, not small retail concessions

* Airport losses drop from $7m at NAD 
takeover to around $3.5-$4m today

* Airport Authority Board signs-off on general contractor award
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n By NEIL HARTNELL
Tribune Business Editor

CABLE television and tele-
coms costs in the Bahamas
“appear high” in comparison to
other island economies of simi-
lar size and living standards, a
document released yesterday by
the Bahamas Telecommunica-
tions Company’s (BTC) pri-
vatisation committee said.

The document said Cable
Bahamas’ basic cable television
package, priced at $30 per
month since inception, “appears
expensive in relation to other
small island states, with the
exception of the Cayman
Islands”. It added that a similar

Cable TV costs
‘appear high’
against rivals
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n By CHESTER ROBARDS
Business Reporter
crobards@tribunemedia.net

THE BAHAMAS Financial
Services Union (BFSU) yes-
terday urged Royal Bank of
Canada employees to “step up
to the plate” and unionise, rais-
ing the spectre of lay-offs fol-
lowing the merger between the
Royal Bank of Canada (RBC)
and the RBTT Financial

Group.
The BFSU president, There-

sa Mortimer, said Royal Bank
employees in the Bahamas
were missing out on an array of
benefits afforded their
Caribbean colleagues because
they were not unionised. 

The move represented the
latest step in the union’s lob-
bying campaign to urge the
bank’s employees to join it and
unionise, following their First-

Caribbean International Bank
(Bahamas) counterparts.

Ms Mortimer said the most
imminent benefit that Royal
Bank employees would enjoy
from joining the BFSU was the
redundancy benefit that can be
negotiated by the union.

Impending
The impending RBC /RBTT

merger will find the company
moving its corporate head-
quarters form the Bahamas to
a new building in Trinidad and
Tobago. And the BFSU pre-
dicts major job losses with the

loss of the regional headquar-
ters.

“We all know what happens
in mergers, and the current
environment says, and the eco-
nomic situation says. that the
finance sector is going to do
the same thing,” said Ms Mor-
timer.

She said another important
benefit Royal Bank workers
will receive immediately is the
BFSU’s negotiating body in
discussion with the bank’s
managers.

Royal Bank’s president and
country head, Nathaniel Bene-
by, said he was not opposed to

the bank’s employees unionis-
ing. He insisted, however, that
the management of Royal
Bank has had a traditional
open door policy with employ-
ees, and suggested that he has
not heard any major grievances
at the bank’s regular round
table discussions with staff.

Obligated
The BFSU’s secretary-gen-

eral, Lashon Sawyer, said Mr
Beneby was obligated to make
such statements.

According to her, 18 of the
21 Caribbean territories where

Royal Bank operates have
union members within the
ranks of the bank.

She said the Bahamas, Bar-
bados and Trinidad are the
only territories without union
representation within Royal
Bank, though Trinidad is mov-
ing towards that now.

“We need the staff of Royal
Bank (Bahamas) to step up to
the plate,” said Ms Mortimer.

“When you look at it,
Trinidad and Barbados have
general workers unions. They
(Royal Bank  Bahamas) have
to get a union so that we will
all be on the same page.”
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TWO Bahamians have been
named among the 10 finalists
for Scotiabank’s Change-Maker
Challenge. 

The 2009 Change-Maker
Challenge contest asked young
adults from 14 Caribbean coun-
tries to share their marketing
vision for Scotiabank’s new
young adult-focused pro-
gramme, Scotiabank Be. More
than 1300 original ideas were
submitted. 

The 10 Caribbean finalists
selected to move on include
Fabian Fernander and Janairo
Turnquest of the Bahamas. The
others are Debbie-Ann Estwick
of Barbados, Kayla Hall of

Belize, Roma Singh of Guyana,
Janelle Brown and Sandre Mal-
colm of Jamaica, Tarek
Mohammed and Afeisha
Williams of Trinidad & Tobago,
and Roleza Samuel of St. Vin-
cent.

“The number of responses we
received this year far outpaced
our estimates,” said Pat
Minicucci, Scotiabank’s senior
vice-president for the
Caribbean. 

“The calibre of creativity in
the Caribbean is outstanding,
and the submissions to this
year’s challenge have further
confirmed this. The essays
showcase the unbelievable tal-

ent coming from the future
business leaders of the region.” 

Contestants were asked to
create a marketing strategy for
Scotiabank Be, Scotiabank’s
young adult banking platform. 

Summaries of the finalists’
submissions have been posted
on the contest website
http://www.change-makerchal-
lenge.com) for peer evaluation.
A panel of judges, made up of
senior Scotiabank executives,
as well as local academic leaders
and media persons, will evalu-
ate the submissions, examine
the peer evaluations and nar-
row the group to three. 

In July, the top three final-

ists will be flown to Jamaica to
personally present their sub-
missions to the judging panel.
The individual with the most
innovative idea will take home
the $10,000 grand prize. 

The second and third placed
entrants will take home $5,000
and $3,000, respectively. 

The winners will be
announced by the judging pan-
el at a press conference in
Kingston, Jamaica, on July 17,
2009. 

The Scotiabank Change-
Maker challenge was developed
to reflect the importance the
bank places on its young cus-
tomers and their ideas. 

Two Bahamians reach final 10 in bank contest

Union to Royal Bank staff: ‘Step up to the plate’
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is recruiting a

The Bahamas
Development Bank

Managing Director
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n By CHESTER ROBARDS
Business Reporter
crobards@tribunemedia.net

GOVERNMENT’s first pri-
ority for the financial services
sector is to create a secure,
crime free environment for the
Bahamas, the minister of state
for finance said yesterday, while
touting the great responsibility
regulators have for helping the
Government keep the integri-
ty of the industry “sound”.

Zhivargo Liang said the Gov-
ernment has an overarching
responsibility to create eco-
nomic growth by stabilizing the
environment in which citizens
and foreigners in pursuit of eco-
nomic opportunities must do
business.

He said security for citizens
and residents was a top priority
for the Government with
respect to financial services.

“If you think this is unrelated
to promoting a financial services
industry development, you tell
me how the work that you do in
the places that you do them
would be affected by a disor-
derly, crime-ridden Bahamas.
Tell me whether there is any
OECD initiative that will cause
your industry to shut down
more quickly than an out-of-
control crime problem in the
Bahamas,” said Mr Liang.

He said the Bahamas WAS
in need of a serious discussion
on fundamental developmental
issues, which has not been car-
ried out in his time.

According to him, the role of
the Government need to be
properly established so that it
can put itself in a position to
duly assist the financial services
sector.

“So the Government has, at
the very fundamental level, to

do that because the pursuit of
every other noble objective is
easier in an environment with
peace and order,” Mr Laing
said.

“Once the Government has
been able to put the physical
infrastructure in place, govern-
ment has to listen to the finan-
cial services sector.”

Mr Liang said the Bahamas
government’s relationship with
the financial services sector, par-
ticularly through the Bahamas
Financial Services Board
(BFSB), was one that is split
down the middle and equally
distributed.

“We established a relation-
ship with the BFSB,  whose
responsibility it is to do promo-
tions,” he said. 

“We fund it to the tune of
$500,000, and they match the
funds within the industry. We
give them funds to promote; we
also participate with them
strategically in overseas mis-
sions where they think our pres-
ence would lend to the promo-
tion exercise they are doing, and
so in that joint partnership we
try to work together.

“Government is the protec-
tor of the integrity of the finan-
cial services sector. If the sys-
tem is abused and misused, it is
the responsibility of the gov-
ernment.”

Combating crime key to 
financial sector’s success

Zhivargo Laing

          



expires in October 2009, the company cannot yet deliver its services
to the Bahamian public.

Tribune Business had previously reported that IP Solutions
International was in talks with Systems Resource Group (SRG),
parent company of IndiGo Networks, to use parts of its infra-
structure to deliver its services. It is not known how far talks have
progressed, though.

IP Solutions International had previously told Tribune Busi-
ness that it had aimed to serve more than 5,000 Bahamians hotel
rooms during its first year of operation. 

The company had also been talking to a ‘foreign partner’ who
had offered to finance construction of its IP (Internet Protocol)
head-end technology for $2 million.

number of channels to Cable’s
basic offering were priced at
between $10-$23 per month in
Malta and Jamaica.

“Cable Bahamas’ prices
appear high despite the fact that
the price for these services has
not increased for the last 15
years,” the BTC privatisation
committee’s consultation doc-

ument said.
The same “appears expen-

sive” conclusion was reached
with regard to BTC’s cellular
and fixed-line international call
prices. The former found that
BTC’s calls per minute prices
to the US, Canada and the UK
were “slightly higher than peak
rate calls in the Cayman Islands
and Jamaica, and substantially
higher than peak rates in other

small jurisdictions such as
Guernsey, Jamaica and Malta”.

On the cellular side, BTC’s
tariffs for pre-paid and post-
paid calls at a domestic level
were also “relatively expensive”
when set against international
comparatives, while the cost of
services was increased by the
fact customers paid to receive
fixed-line and international
calls.

Spinks told Tribune Business
that he apologised for not mak-
ing it clear at Monday’s meeting
that the incentive fee payments
only applied to larger conces-
sion contracts, not the small
retail outlets, carts and kiosks.
Therefore, there would be no
discrimination against smaller
Bahamian firms.

“The incentive fee would not
apply to the small stores,” Mr
Spinks told Tribune Business.
“It’s an option if someone puts
that into their bid,  but it’s
intended only to apply to the
larger contracts, such as the gas
station, where we only had
three bidders.

“I didn’t make that clear at
the meeting. The incentive only
applies to the larger contracts,
not the 400 square foot retail
stores.”

Mr Spinks said of the six cart
and kiosk concessions already
awarded at LPIA, some 80 per
cent of them were being oper-
ated by Bahamian small busi-
nesses. “We certainly support
small business entities in there,
and the incentive fee does not
apply to those leases,” he
added.

Meanwhile, Mr Spinks con-
firmed reports reaching Tribune
Business that the companies
currently operating those kiosks
and carts would have to re-bid
for the contracts when the new
US international departures
building was opened in 2011.
They will have to compete not
only with each other, but also
with new hopefuls.

“That’s correct,” Mr Spinks
confirmed to tribune Business.
“That was made clear to them
right from the beginning. The
leases on the carts are for one
year, with a one-year extension.

“It was only for the current
location [the current US depar-
tures terminal]. The one reason
that we did the kiosks and carts
in the current terminal building
was that there was no room for
more stores. We had to get
retail in there somehow.”

When the $409 million LPIA

redevelopment is completed,
Tribune Business understands
the airport will have a total of
35,000 square feet of space for
retail, restaurants and storage
space.

Mr Spinks said the retail mix
in the new US departures ter-
minal, when constructed, would
be different from the current
terminal with more “stores” and
less kiosks and carts.

The current plan is for eight
stores of between 300-400
square feet, with two kiosks and
“one or two carts” in the new
US departures terminal. The
new international departures
building, when completed, will
have four kiosks and “a couple
of carts”.

Mr Spinks said existing kiosk
and cart tenants, such as
Uniquely Bahamian, Sun Drops
and My Ocean, had all
expressed satisfaction with the
performance of their airport
businesses. And their rental
income, along with the passen-
ger facility fee, has been to
NAD’s benefit.

“Our annual losses, which
were about $7 million when we
took over, are down somewhere
around $3 million-something or
$4 million. We’ve picked up $3-

$4 million in cost savings and
revenues,” Mr Spinks said.

The NAD executive also con-
firmed that the gas station “con-
tract is going to Sun Oil”, the
FOCOL subsidiary that oper-
ates under the Shell brand. Both
NAD and Sun Oil were now
waiting on the Ministry of
Works to finalise its plan for
widening JFK Drive, which
includes a roundabout by the
‘conch shell’ on the airport
access road.

NAD, explained Mr Spinks,
was waiting for the Ministry to
produce roundabout designs so
that it could then assess how far
back from the road the gas sta-
tion’s location needed to be.
Once this happened, a planning
permission application could
then be made.

Mr Spinks added, though,
that NAD had put plans for a
fast food restaurant or retail
outlet next to the gas station
“on the shelf right now”, after
not receiving the amount or
quality of bids expected.

He added that the Airport
Authority Board had just signed
off on the appointment of the
general contractor for the LPIA
redevelopment, a decision now
awaiting ministerial approval.
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THE COLLEGE OF THE BAHAMAS
Visit our website at www.cob.edu.bs

SCHOOL OF BUSINESS
ORIENTATION AND ADVISEMENT FOR

FALL SEMESTER 2009

ORIENTATION AND ADVISEMENT WILL TAKE PLACE FRIDAY, JUNE 19,
2009 FROM 9 AM TO 1 PM IN ROOMS B-5 AND B-6 FOR THE FOLLOWING
STUDENTS ACCEPTED IN THE SCHOOL OF BUSINESS (BBA) PRO-
GRAMMES:

1 STUDENTS WITH EARLY ACCEPTANCE   
2 STUDENTS WHO HAVE COMPLETED COLLEGE PREP   
3 STUDENTS WHO HAVE COMPLETED THE UPGRADING PROGRAM

(CEES) 

ALL STUDENTS SHOULD BRING COPIES OF ACCEPTANCE LETTERS, COM-
PLETION LETTERS AND RELEVANT EXAM RESULTS SUCH AS THE BGCSE.

To advertise in The Tribune - 
just call 502-2371 today!

FOCOL wins airport
gas station contract

‘Multiple play’
start-up still 

seeking major
$14m bite

Cable TV costs ‘appear high’ against rivals
FFRROOMM ppaaggee 11BB
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Owen Bethel
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Please submit resume to: Human Resources Department | Doctors Hospital
P.O. Box N-3018 | | Nassau, Bahamas | or Email: nwatkins@doctorshosp.com

to be a part of our WOW service team.
We Welcome you

“I ensure that vital 
equipment around the 
hospital are in perfect 
working condition 
according to strict

ensuring that you and 
your family receive
safe and comfortable 
tr
every time.. ”

• Graduate of BTVI tech ical program;
• Previous experie ce with basic electrical a d plumbi g duties;
• Ability to troubleshoot of

related to Healthcare services
• oral skills;
• Good customer service/or skills
• Ability to work

The successful will:

the hospital a state of the art
Perform basic repairs service of Be for the

upkeep of the hospital

| Salary with

ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN

Be jami Forbes, Associate
Engineering Technician

w w w . d o c t o r s h o s p . c o m

n By STEPHEN
OHLEMACHER
Associated Press Writer

WASHINGTON (AP) —
Company-issued cell phones
might feel like a tether to the
office even in workers’ off-
hours. The phones also are a
taxable fringe benefit, and the
Obama administration wants to
change that.

The administration has asked
Congress to repeal the widely
ignored tax on the personal use
of company cell phones, saying
it is outdated and difficult to
enforce. The request Tuesday
came a week after the Internal
Revenue Service caused an
uproar when it sought ideas for
how better to enforce the law.

A 1989 law says workers are
supposed to count the value of
personal calls on a company cell
phone as taxable income. The
cell phone tax, however, can be
a pain for workers who increas-
ingly use mobile devices for tex-
ting, e-mailing and browsing the
Internet — sometimes for work,
sometimes for personal use.

“There’s been very uneven
enforcement, said Marianna
Dyson, a former IRS lawyer
who now is an employment tax
and fringe benefits expert with
Miller & Chevalier in Washing-
ton.

“I think most employers are
reasonable. But do I see
employers requiring employees
to document every single busi-
ness call?” Dyson said. “It’s
administratively burdensome.”

IRS Commissioner Doug
Shulman said the tax is “poorly
understood by taxpayers,” and
acknowledged it was difficult to
enforce consistently.

“The passage of time,
advances in technology and the

nature of communication in the
modern workplace have ren-
dered this law obsolete,” Shul-
man said in a statement.

Shulman said he and Trea-
sury Secretary Timothy Geith-
ner were asking Congress to
repeal the tax. The House
passed a bill to repeal the tax
last year, but it stalled in the
Senate. This year, bipartisan
bills have been introduced in
both chambers.

“We need to modernize the
laws to reflect the reality that
cell phones, BlackBerrys and
text messaging are an everyday
extension of the workplace and
are here to stay,” said Sen. John
Kerry, D-Mass. “Cell phones
are no longer executive perks
or luxury items, and our tax
code cannot treat them that way
anymore.”

Just last week, the IRS issued
a request for comments on ways
to improve compliance with the
law. One option suggested by
the IRS would assume that per-
sonal use accounts for a quarter
of the phone’s overall use.
Another would require work-
ers to document their personal
use of company cell phones.

Shulman denied that the IRS
had been trying to “crack
down” on workers who don’t
pay the tax. Instead, he said, the
IRS was “attempting to simpli-
fy the rules and eliminate uncer-
tainty for businesses and indi-
viduals.”

Some employers have faced
big tax bills after failing to com-
ply with the law.

In 2008, the IRS audited two
University of California branch-
es, in Los Angeles and San
Diego. As part of a settlement,
UCLA paid a tax assessment of
$238,474 and UCSD paid
$186,471.

Industry representatives said
they were pleased that the IRS
changed its position.

“We just think that this law
was put into effect in a bygone
era,” said John Walls, vice pres-
ident of public affairs for CTIA-
The Wireless Association, a
trade group.

“In 1989, cell phones were
considered a luxury item that
were actually referred to as car
phones,” Walls said. “Now, we
have unlimited calling on our
cell phones. We have free nights
and weekends. The company is
not even paying for that. Why
should I get taxed for that?”

Push to repeal
cell phone tax

Share
your
news

The Tribune wants to hear
from people who are
making news in their
neighbourhoods. Perhaps
you are raising funds for a
good cause, campaigning
for improvements in the
area or have won an
award.
If so, call us on 322-1986
and share your story.
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n By H JOSEF HEBERT
Associated Press Writer

WASHINGTON (AP) —
Legislation that would require
greater use of renewable ener-
gy, make it easier to build pow-
er lines and allow oil and gas
drilling near Florida’s coast
advanced Wednesday in the
Senate.

The Energy and Natural
Resources Committee voted 15-
8 to clear the measure, although
both Democrats and Republi-
cans — for different reasons —
said they had concerns about
the bill and hoped to make
major changes on the Senate
floor.

The legislation’s primary
thrust is to expand the use of
renewable sources of energy
such as wind, solar and geot-
hermal sources as well as deal
with the growing concerns
about the inadequacies of the
nation’s high-voltage power
grid.

But the bill also would
remove the last congressional
barrier to offshore oil and gas
development, lifting a ban on
drilling across a vast area in the

eastern Gulf of Mexico that had
been put off limits by Congress
three years ago. Drilling would
be allowed within 45 miles of
most of Florida’s coast and as
close as 10 miles off the state’s
Panhandle area.

The Senate bill for the first
time would establish a national
requirement for utilities to pro-
duce 15 percent of their elec-
tricity from renewable sources,
a contentious issue that is likely
to attract heated debate once
the bill is taken up by the full
Senate, probably in the fall.

Twenty-eight states currently
have some renewable energy
requirement for utilities, but
supporters of the measure argue
a national mandate is needed
to spur such energy develop-
ment.

The legislation also would
give much wider authority to
federal regulators over the
nation’s electricity grid.

The Federal Energy Regula-
tory Commission would be giv-
en authority to approve the sit-
ing of high voltage power lines
if states fail to act and would
be given additional powers over
cyber security on the grid.

Senate Majority Leader Har-
ry Reid, D-Nev., has said he
hopes to take up energy legis-
lation after the August recess,
although it’s uncertain whether
it will be merged with separate
legislation addressing climate
change. The House is working
on a climate bill that includes
many of the same energy issues
addressed by the Senate bill.

While the bill was approved
by a safe margin in the commit-
tee its prospects in the full Sen-
ate are anything but certain.
Several senators called it too
weak in its support of renew-
able energy development, while
others said it ignored nuclear
energy and greater domestic oil
and gas production.

“None of us got all we want-
ed,” said Sen. Jeff Bingaman,
D-N.M., the committee’s chair-
man, who was forced to agree
to a variety of compromises to
give the bill a chance of advanc-
ing.

That was apparent in the way
the bill deals with renewable
energy mandate.

Bingaman, and many of the
panel’s other Democrats, had
wanted at least a 20 per cent
renewable energy requirement.
The bill requires 15 per cent
renewable use by 2021, but also
would allow utilities to avoid a
fourth of that mandate by show-
ing efficiency improvements.
Renewable energy use could be
cut further for utilities that
increase their use of nuclear
energy either from a new reac-
tor or increased reactor output.

“This is an extraordinary
weak bill,” said Sen. Bernie
Sanders, I-Vt.

But Sanders voted to advance
the bill, as did Sen. Bob Corker,
R-Tenn. Both senators said they
hoped the bill will be strength-
ened.

“I suspect their definition of
strengthening might be some-
what different,” quipped Sen.
Evan Bayh, D-Ind., whose own
support of the bill came despite
strong opposition to the federal
renewable energy requirements
on utilities.

Sanders wants the renewable
energy requirement to be much
higher, at 25 per cent. Corker
said the bill needs more to pro-
mote nuclear energy and
domestic oil and gas produc-
tion.

The bill also calls for:
—Establishing a new office

to steer grants and loan guar-
antees to clean energy projects.

—Creating an oil products
reserve to be used if there are
supply problems.

—Creating federal standards
for efficiency standards for new
building.
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Energy bill advances 
in the US Senate

       



the things I will be harping on
about over the next few months
is to begin addressing education
issues, begin addressing train-
ing issues, and to be begin
addressing the competitiveness
of small and medium-sized busi-
nesses in the country.”

Regardless of whether the
Bahamas entered into more
free trade agreements such as
the Economic Partnership
Agreement (EPA), Mr Rolle
said addressing the competi-
tiveness of a sector that
accounted for 80 per cent of

Bahamian businesses was key
to this nation’s future econom-
ic success.

“We still have, as a private
sector, to develop better strate-
gies to manage businesses,” he
added. “We don’t know when
the next crisis is going to hit,
and with this one we got caught
with our pants down. A lot of
small and medium-sized busi-
nesses went out of business
because they were just not pre-
pared.”

Mr Rolle pointed to the com-
pany he works for as market-
ing director, Bahamas Ferries,
as an example of a Bahamian
business whose ability to

expand as needed hinged heav-
ily on the competency and
expertise of its workforce.

“My company, Bahamas Fer-
ries, needs more people trained
in the marine industry.  We’ve
been growing at an astonishing
rate,” he explained. “Over the
past 10 years, we’ve really posi-
tioned ourselves as a leading
operator.

“If you look at the number
of vessels in a business like ours,
and the rate of growth of those
vessels in an operation of our
size and geographic reach, those
companies usually grow by one
vessel every five to seven years,
and we’ve been getting one ves-
sel every two years.

“If we’re going to continue
on that growth path, we need
that technical expertise to be
consistent with that. Our
employees have to be techni-
cally qualified, because of our

specialist needs that need spe-
cialist training.”

Although the Government’s
National Training Programme
was focused on the
training/retraining of 1,000
unemployed Bahamians select-
ed from those who had regis-
tered with the National Insur-
ance Board’s (NIB) unemploy-
ment benefit scheme, Mr Rolle
said he was also looking long-
term.

“One of the things that I am
keenly aware of is we usually
make short-term decisions,” Mr
Rolle added. “With this partic-
ular project, I’m working dili-
gently to make this a long-term,
self-sustaining programme. It
has tremendous merit.

“It requires a lot of funding, a
well-oiled, sustainable machine.
That is why the Chamber is
actively involved in this. It ben-
efits our members. It’s a starting

point. I see it as a springboard
to a much larger initiative that
addresses a much wider labour
pool and a much wider skill set.
If you have an educated and
well-trained workforce, that
goes directly to the bottom
line.”

Mr Rolle said the committee
charged with overseeing and
developing the National Train-
ing Programme was now devel-
oping the structure for the ini-
tiative, the process for select-
ing the 1,000 workers, the insti-
tutions that would be involved
and ensuring “there is some
long-term benefit”.

Mr Rolle said the committee
also wanted to ensure persons
who completed the programme
received some form of certifi-

cation. The institutions involved
will be the Bahamas Technical
and Vocational Institute
(BTVI) and the College of the
Bahamas (COB).

The committee was targeting
summer 2009 for the program-
me’s start, which Mr Rolle
acknowledged was an “aggres-
sive” timescale, and autumn was
the fall-back start date.

The committee was also
working on developing candi-
date profiles to ensure persons
in the programme were placed
on the appropriate course, and
Mr Rolle said they were looking
at a ‘work-study’ arrangement
where course entrants could
gain experience working in the
private sector while also study-
ing.
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Training initiative must be ‘long-term and self-sustaining’

To advertise in The Tribune - 
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n By DANIEL WAGNER
AP Business Writers

WASHINGTON (AP) —
Ten large US banks planned to
repay about $68 billion in
bailout money Wednesday,
marking a new phase for the
most visible government effort
to relieve the credit crisis.

The Treasury Department
last week said the banks could
begin repaying money they
received last fall under the $700
billion financial system bailout
known as the Troubled Asset
Relief Programme, or TARP.
The programme was the cen-
terpiece of the government
effort to relieve a global credit
crunch and teetering financial
markets last October.

The banks have since been
negotiating with Treasury over
the prices of stock warrants they
issued as part of the TARP deal.
When Treasury made its initial
investments, it received the war-
rants, which give it the oppor-
tunity to buy the banks’ com-
mon shares in the future at a
fixed price. The value of the
warrants would depend on the
shares’ future performance.

The pricing of warrants has
been a point of contention, slow-
ing the repayment process.
Banks want to pay less to tear
up the warrants than Treasury
says they’re worth. But until
banks have bought back the

warrants, the banks will remain
tied to the federal programme.
Several banks said they had told
Treasury they wished to buy the
warrants, officially starting the
negotiation process.

TARP became a flashpoint
for critics of government inter-
vention last fall, when Congress
debated whether to commit
$700 billion of taxpayer money
to the effort.

Wednesday’s repayment
plans were described by three
industry officials who spoke on
condition of anonymity because
not all the banks had yet made
their official announcements.

The banks repaying TARP
are some of the industry’s
largest, including JPMorgan
Chase & Co., American Express
Co., Goldman Sachs Group Inc.
and Morgan Stanley. BB&T
Corp. and U.S. Bancorp. also
said they were repaying their
TARP money.

Banks have been itching to
quit TARP because it subjects
them to limits on executive com-
pensation and other rules.

Before getting permission to
repay their TARP money, the
banks had to meet a series of
government requirements. Nine
of the 10 were subject to a
“stress test” designed to show
how they would withstand a
deeper recession. They also had
to raise equity from investors
and raise debt without govern-

ment guarantees. But the banks
still rely on some government
subsidies, including debt guar-

antees from the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corp. and discount-
ed credit lines from the Federal

Reserve. Wednesday was the
first day the banks were eligi-
ble to repay the money. Gold-

man disclosed its plans in let-
ters to congressional leaders
Tuesday.
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Insurance Company
of The Bahamas

ASSETS 2008 2007

Cash and bank balances (Notes 5,18) $ 2,469,148 862,794
Term deposits (Notes 6,18) 5,856,614 5,148,030
Reinsurance recoveries (Notes 4,12,18) 14,901,166 14,444,488
Due from agent (Notes 7,18) 4,526,005 6,241,574
Deferred commission reserve (Notes 7,18) 5,582,346 5,600.044
Prepaid reinsurance premiums (Notes 12,18) 20,251,890 20,081,005
Prepayments and other receivables (Note 18) 54,661 42,370
Investments in securities
- fair value through profit and loss (Notes 7, 8,18) 3,203,906 3,605,515
- held-to-maturity (Notes 8,18) 5,848,090 6,835,381
- available for sale (Notes 8,18) 2,162,500 2,212,500

Investment property (Note 9) 1,601,464 536,917
Property, plant and equipment (Note10) 1,314,602 1,361,687

Total assets $ 67,772,392 66,972,305

LIABILITIES
General insurance funds:
Unearned premium reserve (Notes 12,18) $ 24,785,444 24,628,586
Outstanding claims (Notes 12,18) 17,381,917 16,902,927

42,167,361 41,531,513

Other liabilities:

Unearned commission reserve (Note 18) 5,052,287 5,056,626
Due to reinsurers (Note 4,18) 4,383,927 4,629,046
Accounts payable and accruals (Note 7,18) 400,706 377,190

Total liabilities 52,004,281 51,594,375

NET ASSETS $ 15,768,111 15,377,930

Represented by:
Share capital
Authorized, issued and fully paid:-
3,000,000 ordinary shares of $1.00 each $ 3,000,000 3,000,000

General reserve (Note 14) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained earnings 10,768,111 10,377,930

$ 15,768,111 15,377,930

See accompanying notes to financial statements

These financial statements were authorized for issue on behalf of the Board of Directors on April 7, 2009 by:

Director Director

Insurance Company of The Bahamas Limited
Balance Sheet
Year ended December 31, 2008, with corresponding figures for 2007 Expressed in Bahamian dollars

Statement of Income
Year ended December 31, 2008, with corresponding figures for 2007

INCOME 2008 2007

Gross written premiums (Note 7) $ 51,734,059 51,793,130
Premium tax (1,500,133) (1,476,230)

50,233,926 50,316,900

Ceded to reinsurers (40,888,440) (40,975,310)

Net retained premiums 9,345,486 9,341,590
Decrease in unearned premium reserve (Note 12) 14,027 210,952
Portfolio transfer (Note 13) – (373,786)

Net premiums earned 9,359,513 9,178,756

EXPENSES
Net claims incurred (Note 12) 2,862,505 1,834,578
Net commissions incurred (Notes 7, 11 ) 312,089 302,207
Excess of loss reinsurance 4,593,465 4,287,271

7,768,059 6,424,156

Underwriting profit 1,591,454 2,754,600

OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
Interest income (Notes 5, 6, 8) 842,389 683,338
Dividend and other income (Note 7) 421,808 507,614
Change in net unrealized gains
on investments in securities (Note 8) (401,609) 1,058,888

2,454,042 5,004,440

Personnel expenses (Notes 7, 16) (520,119) (440,397)

Depreciation (Notes 9, 10) (62,454) (60,626)
Interest expenses (15,287) (1,750)

General and administrative expenses (Note 7) (466,001) (374,384)

NET INCOME $ 1,390,181 4,127,283

Expressed in Bahamian dollars

Expressed in Bahamian dollars

Share General Retained
Capital Reserve Earnings Total

Balance at December 31, 2006 $ 3,000,000 2,000,000 7,000,647 12,000,647

Net Income – – 4,127,283 4,127,283

Dividends (Note 17) – – (750,000) (750,000)

Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 3,000,000 2,000,000 10,377,930 15,377,930

Net Income – – 1,390,181 1,390,181

Dividends (Note 17) – – (1,000,000) (1,000,000)

Balance at December 31, 2008 $ 3,000,000 2,000,000 10,768,111 15,768,111

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
Year ended December 31, 2008, with corresponding figures for 2007

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2008, with corresponding figures for 2007 Expressed in Bahamian dollars

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2008 2007

Net income $ 1,390,181 4,127,283

Adjustments for:
Unearned premium reserve 14,027 210,952
Interest income (842,389) (683,338)
Dividend income (251,597) (276,270)
Interest expense 15,287 1,750
Change in net unrealized gains on investments in securities (401,609) (1,058,888)
Depreciation 62,454 60,626

789,572 2,382,115

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Reinsurance recoveries (456,678) (1,120,934)
Due from agent 1,715,569 3,711,974
Deferred commission reserve 17,698 80,606
Prepaid reinsurance premiums (170,885) 46,416
Prepayments and other receivables 10,079 (23,261)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Unearned premium reserve 142,831 (468,320)
Outstanding claims 478,990 775,226
Unearned commission reserve (4,339) (6,862)
Due to reinsurers (245,119) (287,884)
Accounts payable and accruals 23,516 (650,204)

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,301,234 4,438,872

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net placement of term deposits (643,229) (1,579,783)
Purchase of investment properties (1,068,586) –
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (11,330) (28,157)
Maturity/(purchase) of investments in securities and bonds 1,000,000 (1,416,431)
Proceeds from sale of investments in securities 50,000 50,000
Interest received 764,325 630,195
Dividends received 229,227 276,270

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 320,407 (2,067,906)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (1,000,000) (750,000)
Interest paid (15,287) (1,750)

Net cash used in financing activities (1,015,287) (751,750)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,606,35 1,619,216

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 862,794 (756,422)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 2,469,148 862,794

Supplemental information:
Premium tax paid $ 1,524,843 2,125,762

The full audited Financial Statements
including the notes which form an

intergral part of the Financial Statements
are available on the Company’s website

at www.icbbahamas.com

BTC cellular 
charging branded 

an ‘anomaly’
effect, cross-subsidising the
fixed-line customer and ser-
vice”.

In addition, the ‘receiver
pays’ principle also eroded the
ability of BTC’s pre-paid cellu-
lar customers to control their
telecoms costs - the very rea-
son they had selected this ser-
vice - and made them reluctant
to answer their phones, again
defeating the product’s very
purpose. 

It also meant that interna-
tional and domestic-orginated
fixed-line calls would be termi-
nated if BTC’s pre-paid cellular
customers did not have suffi-
cient credit on their phones for
the call’s duration.

“It appears that the charging
anomalies outlined in the fore-
going paragraphs are not best
practice, and are not in the best
interest of the Bahamian public
going forward,” the BTC pri-
vatisation committee’s paper
said.

“A move towards calling par-
ty pays for all domestic and
international calls would enable
a single, consistent charging
approach without anomalies
and without overlapping rev-
enues.”

The paper added that the cur-
rent absence of competition in
the cellular market, where BTC
enjoys monopoly status - and
will do until effectively two
years after privatisation - meant
that Bahamian consumer cur-
rently had no choice over the
charging/payment plan they
preferred.

The BTC privatisation com-
mittee is also looking to move
away from the ‘discretionary’
approach to retail price regula-
tion in the communications
market, as employed by the
soon-to-be-replaced Public Util-
ities Commission (PUC), and
adopt a process that is “more
transparent”.

Pointing to the fact that both
the PUC and BTC had con-
cerns over the “high level of dis-
cretion” employed currently,
the consultation document said:
“The process for approval of
price changes has proved time-
consuming and provides very
little incentive for BTC to be
efficient.

“All price changes, including
decreases, are required to be
the subject of public consulta-
tions. The requirement to apply
for permission for all price
changes appears to be more
onerous than in many other reg-
ulatory regimes.

“International best practice
is to move away from this sort
of discretionary price setting to
a more transparent process that
provides a balance between
consumer protection, flexibili-
ty and incentives for operators
to be innovative whilst promot-
ing efficiency.”

The consultation paper said
that while regulators in more
developed countries only regu-
lated pricing at the wholesale
level in their communications
sectors, the Government felt
retail price regulation was nec-
essary because “the level of
competition in the Bahamas
may be too low at present and
in the near future”.

The Government is looking
at the ‘price cap’ approach to
regulation of the Bahamian
communications sector.

US banks plan to repay about $68bn in bailout money



n By JIM KUHNHENN
Associated Press Writer

WASHINGTON (AP) —
President Barack Obama pro-
posed new “rules of the road”
for the nation’s financial system
yesterday, casting the changes
as an essential response to the
economic crisis and the great-
est regulatory transformation

since the Great Depression.
Obama blamed the crisis on

“a culture of irresponsibility”
that he said had taken root from
Wall Street to Washington to
Main Street, and he said regu-
lations crafted to deal with the
depression of the 1930s had
been “overwhelmed by the
speed, scope and sophistication
of a 21st century global econo-

my.” The Obama plan would
give new powers to the Federal
Reserve to oversee the entire
financial system and would also
create a new consumer protec-
tion agency to guard against
credit and other abuses that
played a big role in the current
crisis.

In remarks prepared for
delivery later in the day, Obama
attributed much of the country’s
current problem to “a cascade
of mistakes and missed oppor-
tunities” that happened over
decades.

The Fed’s expanded authori-
ty and the rest of the new rules
would reach into currently
unregulated regions of the
financial markets. An 88-page
white paper released by the
administration detailed an effort
to change a regime that Oba-
ma’s economic team maintained
had become too porous for the
innovations and intricacies of
today’s financial markets.

Obama said the plan was
designed in consultation with
lawmakers, regulators and the
institutions it seeks to police.

“We seek a careful balance,”

Obama said.
The plan would do away with

the Office of Thrift Supervision,
replacing it with a system aimed
at closing gaps in coverage and
keeping institutions from shop-
ping for the most lenient bank
regulator. The consumer agency
would place new restrictions on
lenders and mortgage brokers,
requiring them to offer simple
loans to consumers.

“Mortgage brokers will be
held to higher standards, exotic
mortgages that hide exploding
costs will no longer be the norm,
home mortgage disclosures will
be reasonable, clearly written,
and concise,” Obama said.

The president offered his ver-
sion of the source of the finan-
cial crisis, tracing the troubles
to complex financial instruments
such as asset-backed securities
that ended up concentrating
risk. “It was easy money,” he
said. “But these schemes were
built on a pile of sand.”

The regulatory system either
had gaps or overlaps with little
accountability, he said.

“Millions of Americans who
have worked hard and behaved

responsibly have seen their life
dreams eroded by the irrespon-
sibility of others and the failure
of their government to provide
adequate oversight,” Obama
said.

The financial sector and law-
makers from both parties con-
cede the need for significant
changes in the rules that gov-
ern the intricate and intercon-
nected world of banking and
investment. But the details of
Obama’s proposal already are
facing resistance, signaling a
tough sell for a president who is
spending major political capital
on his health care overhaul.

Under Obama’s plan, the
Federal Reserve would gain
power to supervise holding com-
panies and large financial insti-
tutions considered so big that
their failure could undermine
the nation’s financial system.

But even as it gained new pow-
ers, the Fed would lose some
banking authority to the new
Consumer Financial Protection
Agency.

Obama’s proposal would
require the Federal Reserve,
which now can independently
use emergency powers to bail
out failing banks, to first obtain
Treasury Department approval
before extending credit to insti-
tutions in “unusual and exigent
circumstances.”

The president predicted that
critics will find that his efforts go
too far or fall short. The
expanded Fed role and the new
consumer regulator will be sub-
jects of fierce debate in Con-
gress. Many bankers oppose a
new consumer protection regu-
lator, and many lawmakers wor-
ry the Fed could become too
powerful.
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52wk-Hi 52wk-Low Securit y Previous Close Today's Close Change Daily Vol. EPS $ Div $ P/E Yield
1.84 1.28 Abaco Markets 1.39 1.39 0.00 0.127 0.000 10.9 0.00%
11.80 10.00 Bahamas Property Fund 11.00 11.00 0.00 0.992 0.200 11.1 1.82%
9.43 6.94 Bank of Bahamas 6.94 6.94 0.00 0.244 0.260 28.4 3.75%
0.89 0.63 Benchmark 0.63 0.63 0.00 -0.877 0.000 N/M 0.00%
3.60 3.15 Bahamas Waste 3.15 3.15 0.00 0.078 0.090 40.4 2.86%
2.37 2.14 Fidelity Bank 2.37 2.37 0.00 0.055 0.040 43.1 1.69%
14.20 10.18 Cable Bahamas 11.39 11.39 0.00 1.406 0.250 8.1 2.19%
2.90 2.74 Colina Holdings 2.74 2.74 0.00 0.249 0.040 11.0 1.46%
7.50 5.50 Commonwealth Bank (S1) 5.50 5.50 0.00 1,500 0.419 0.360 13.1 6.55%
4.78 1.27 Consolidated Water BDRs 3.45 3.39 -0.06 0.111 0.052 30.5 1.53%
2.95 1.32 Doctor's Hospital 1.50 1.60 0.10 2,434 0.240 0.080 6.7 5.00%
8.20 7.50 Famguard 7.76 7.76 0.00 0.420 0.300 18.5 3.87%
12.50 10.00 Finco 10.97 10.97 0.00 0.322 0.520 34.1 4.74%
11.79 10.35 FirstCaribbean Bank 10.38 10.38 0.00 0.794 0.400 13.1 3.85%
5.55 4.95 Focol (S) 5.09 5.09 0.00 0.332 0.150 15.3 2.95%
1.00 1.00 Focol Class B Preference 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.000 0.000 N/M 0.00%
0.45 0.30 Freeport Concrete 0.30 0.30 0.00 0.035 0.000 8.6 0.00%
9.02 5.50 ICD Utilities 5.50 5.50 0.00 0.407 0.500 13.5 9.09%
12.00 10.50 J. S. Johnson 10.50 10.50 0.00 0.952 0.640 11.0 6.10%
10.00 10.00 Premier Real Estate 10.00 10.00 0.00 0.180 0.000 55.6 0.00%

52wk-Hi 52wk-Low Security Symbol Last Sale Change Daily Vol.
1000.00 1000.00 Fidelity Bank Note 17 (Series A) + FBB17 100.00 0.00
1000.00 1000.00 Fidelity Bank Note 22 (Series B) + FBB22 100.00 0.00
1000.00 1000.00 Fidelity Bank Note 13 (Series C) + FBB13 100.00 0.00
1000.00 1000.00 Fidelity Bank Note 15 (Series D) + FBB15 100.00 0.00

52wk-Hi 52wk-Low Symbol Bid $ Ask $ Last Price Weekly Vol. EPS $ Div $ P/E Yield
14.60 14.25 Bahamas Supermarkets 7.92 8.42 14.60 -0.041 0.300 N/M 2.05%
8.00 6.00 Caribbean Crossings (Pref) 4.00 6.25 6.00 0.000 0.480 N/M 7.80%
0.54 0.20 RND Holdings 0.35 0.40 0.35 0.001 0.000 256.6 0.00%

41.00 29.00 ABDAB 30.13 31.59 29.00 4.540 0.000 9.03 0.00%
0.55 0.40 RND Holdings 0.45 0.55 0.55 0.002 0.000 261.90 0.00%

52wk-Hi 52wk-Low Fund Name NA V YTD% Last 12 Months Div $ Yield %
1.3758 1.3124 Colina Bond Fund 1.3758 1.65 4.83
3.0351 2.9230 Colina MSI Preferred Fund 2.8962 -1.49 -3.35
1.4672 1.3915 Colina Money Market Fund 1.4672 2.34 5.43
3.6090 3.1821 Fidelity Bahamas G & I Fund 3.1821 6.01 -13.90
12.9209 12.2702 Fidelity Prime Income Fund 12.9209 2.40 5.79
100.5606 100.0000 CFAL Global Bond Fund 100.5606 0.56 0.56
100.0000 96.4070 CFAL Global Equity Fund 96.4070 -3.59 -3.59
1.0000 1.0000 CFAL High Grade Bond Fund 1.0000 0.00 0.00
9.5611 9.0775 Fidelity International Investment Fund 9.2511 1.72 4.12
1.0578 1.0000 FG Financial Preferred Income Fund 1.0578 2.13 5.78
1.0364 1.0000 FG Financial Growth Fund 1.0271 -0.57 2.71
1.0554 1.0000 FG Financial Diversified Fund 1.0554 1.74 5.54

 BISX ALL SHARE INDEX  - 19 Dec 02 = 1,000.00 YIELD - last 12 month dividends divided by closing price

 52wk-Hi  - Highest closing price in last 52 weeks Bid $  - Buying price of Colina and Fidelity

 52wk-Low  - Lowest closing price in last 52 weeks Ask $  - Selling price of Colina and fidelity

 Previous Close  - Previous day's weighted price for daily volume Last Price  - Last traded over-the-counter price

 Today's Close  - Current day's weighted price for daily volume Weekly Vol.  - Trading volume of the prior week

 Change  - Change in closing price from day to day EPS $ - A company's reported earnings per share for the last 12 mths

 Daily Vol.  - Number of total shares traded today NAV - Net Asset Value

 DIV $ - Dividends per share paid in the last 12 months N/M - Not Meaningful

 P/E - Closing price divided by the last 12 month earnings FINDEX - The Fidelity Bahamas Stock Index. January 1, 1994 = 100

(S) - 4-for-1 Stock Split - Effective Date 8/8/2007

(S1) - 3-for-1 Stock Split - Effective Date 7/11/2007

31-May-09
31-May-09

WWWWWW..BBIISSXXBBAAHHAAMMAASS..CCOOMM || TTEELLEEPPHHOONNEE::224422--332233--22333300 || FFAACCSSIIMMIILLEE:: 224422--332233--22332200

NAV Date

31-Mar-09
29-May-09
30-Apr-09
31-May-09
31-Dec-08

31-May-09

30-Apr-09

31-Dec-08
31-Dec-07
30-Apr-09

Prime + 1.75%

Maturity
19 October 2017
19 October 2022

30 May 2013
29 May 2015

Interest
7%
Prime + 1.75%
7%

TTOO TTRRAADDEE CCAALLLL:: CCOOLLIINNAA 224422--550022--77001100 || RROOYYAALLFFIIDDEELLIITTYY 224422--335566--77776644 || FFGG CCAAPPIITTAALL MMAARRKKEETTSS 224422--339966--44000000 || CCOOLLOONNIIAALL 224422--550022--77552255

FINDEX: CLOSE 780.49  | YTD -6.51% | 2008 -12.31%

BISX LISTED & TRADED SECURITIES AS OF:

Fidelity Over-The-Counter Securities

Colina Over-The-Counter Securities

BISX Listed Mutual Funds

MARKET TERMS

TUESDAY, 16 JUNE 2009
BISX ALL SHARE INDEX: CLOSE 1,571.51 | CHG 0.45 | %CHG 0.03 | YTD -140.85 | YTD % -8.23

BISX LISTED DEBT SECURITIES - (Bonds trade on a Percentage Pricing bases)
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Obama unveils ‘new rules of 
road’ for financial regulation

Barack Obama (AP)

          



ANDROS

CAT ISLAND

ELEUTHERA

MAYAGUANA

SAN  SALVADOR

GREAT INAGUA

GREAT EXUMA

CROOKED ISLAND / ACKLINS

LONG ISLAND

ABACO

Shown is today's weather. Temperatures are today's
highs and tonights's lows.

KEY WEST

WEST PALM BEACH

FT. LAUDERDALE

TAMPA

ORLANDO

Low: 74°F/23°C

Low: 78°F/26°C

Low: 75°F/24°C

Low: 77°F/25°C

Low: 78°F/26°C

Low: 79°F/26°C

Low: 78°F/26°C

Low: 75°F/24°C

High: 94°F/34°C

High: 93°F/34°C

High: 88°F/31°C

High: 88°F/31°C

High: 89°F/32°C

High: 88°F/31°C

High: 88°F/31°C

Low: 78°F/26°C
High: 88°F/31°C

Low: 78°F/26°C
High: 89°F/32°C

RAGGED ISLAND

Low: 73°F/23°C
High: 87°F/31°C

Low: 75°F/24°C
High: 87°F/31°C

Low: 73°F/23°C
High: 85°F/29°C

Low: 75°F/24°C
High: 87°F/31°C

Low: 76°F/24°C
High: 91°F/33°C

Low: 76°F/24°C
High: 89°F/32°C

Low: 75°F/24°C
High: 88°F/31°C

Low: 77°F/25°C
High: 91°F/33°C

Low: 79°F/26°C
High: 92°F/33°C

High: 88°F/31°C
FREEPORT

NASSAU

MIAMI

THE TRIBUNE THURSDAY, JUNE 18TH, 2009, PAGE 11B

THE WEATHER REPORT
5-DAY FORECAST

Partly sunny with a
heavy shower.

Mainly clear with a
shower late.

Partly sunny with a
thunderstorm.

A full day of
sunshine.

Partial sunshine.

High: 88° Low: 78°
High: 89° High: 90° High: 90°

AccuWeather RealFeel AccuWeather RealFeel AccuWeather RealFeel AccuWeather RealFeel AccuWeather RealFeel

Partly sunny with a
shower possible.

High: 88°
Low: 79° Low: 78° Low: 79°

AccuWeather RealFeel
103° F

The exclusive AccuWeather RealFeel Temperature® is an index that combines the effects of temperature, wind, humidity, sunshine intensity, cloudiness, precipitation, pressure, and
elevation on the human body—everything that effects how warm or cold a person feels. Temperatures reflect the high and the low for the day.

90° F 101°-90° F 108°-88° F 109°-86° F 108°-81° F

Low: 77°

TODAY TONIGHT FRIDAY SATURDAY SUNDAY MONDAY

ALMANAC

High .................................................. 93° F/34° C
Low .................................................... 77° F/25° C
Normal high ...................................... 87° F/31° C
Normal low ........................................ 74° F/23° C
Last year's high .................................. 91° F/33° C
Last year's low .................................. 75° F/24° C

As of 2 p.m. yesterday .................................. 0.05"
Year to date ................................................ 13.74"
Normal year to date .................................... 15.54"

Statistics are for Nassau through 2 p.m. yesterday
Temperature

Precipitation

SUN AND MOON

TIDES FOR NASSAU

New First Full Last

Jun. 22 Jun. 29 Jul. 7 Jul. 15

Sunrise . . . . . . 6:20 a.m.
Sunset. . . . . . . 8:02 p.m.

Moonrise. . . . . 2:22 a.m.
Moonset . . . . . 3:50 p.m.

Today

Friday

Saturday

Sunday

High Ht.(ft.) Low Ht.(ft.)
4:01 a.m. 2.2 10:01 a.m. 0.1
4:34 p.m. 2.9 11:07 p.m. 0.3

5:02 a.m. 2.2 10:58 a.m. 0.0
5:33 p.m. 3.0 -----

6:01 a.m. 2.3 12:06 a.m. 0.1
6:31 p.m. 3.2 11:55 a.m. -0.1

6:58 a.m. 2.4 1:03 a.m. 0.0
7:28 p.m. 3.3 12:52 p.m. -0.2

WORLD CITIES

Acapulco 91/32 77/25 pc 89/31 76/24 t
Amsterdam 67/19 52/11 c 63/17 50/10 sh
Ankara, Turkey 77/25 46/7 pc 79/26 48/8 s
Athens 86/30 70/21 s 84/28 67/19 s
Auckland 56/13 47/8 s 57/13 43/6 s
Bangkok 90/32 79/26 r 90/32 78/25 t
Barbados 86/30 76/24 pc 86/30 76/24 s
Barcelona 80/26 68/20 s 81/27 67/19 sh
Beijing 91/32 71/21 pc 77/25 62/16 pc
Beirut 84/28 64/17 s 78/25 73/22 s
Belgrade 87/30 61/16 s 97/36 67/19 s
Berlin 76/24 50/10 c 68/20 48/8 r
Bermuda 77/25 70/21 sh 79/26 71/21 sh
Bogota 66/18 45/7 c 66/18 46/7 pc
Brussels 68/20 50/10 pc 64/17 48/8 sh
Budapest 87/30 60/15 pc 93/33 55/12 s
Buenos Aires 64/17 52/11 pc 66/18 55/12 pc
Cairo 97/36 71/21 s 101/38 73/22 s
Calcutta 107/41 88/31 pc 97/36 85/29 pc
Calgary 72/22 48/8 pc 68/20 46/7 pc
Cancun 90/32 75/23 t 88/31 72/22 r
Caracas 82/27 71/21 pc 81/27 71/21 t
Casablanca 88/31 70/21 s 92/33 69/20 s
Copenhagen 67/19 51/10 pc 63/17 51/10 sh
Dublin 61/16 45/7 sh 63/17 46/7 pc
Frankfurt 72/22 54/12 c 63/17 46/7 r
Geneva 83/28 61/16 sh 68/20 52/11 t
Halifax 74/23 50/10 s 64/17 50/10 c
Havana 90/32 70/21 t 89/31 72/22 sh
Helsinki 63/17 45/7 s 61/16 46/7 sh
Hong Kong 87/30 79/26 sh 87/30 80/26 s
Islamabad 108/42 74/23 s 112/44 77/25 s
Istanbul 77/25 62/16 pc 80/26 68/20 s
Jerusalem 81/27 60/15 s 84/28 61/16 s
Johannesburg 58/14 46/7 t 58/14 45/7 t
Kingston 86/30 77/25 t 88/31 78/25 r
Lima 72/22 58/14 s 72/22 59/15 s
London 68/20 50/10 pc 68/20 52/11 pc
Madrid 88/31 64/17 t 95/35 64/17 pc
Manila 82/27 77/25 t 83/28 78/25 r
Mexico City 77/25 55/12 t 73/22 55/12 r
Monterrey 97/36 73/22 pc 97/36 74/23 s
Montreal 68/20 59/15 r 72/22 63/17 c
Moscow 66/18 45/7 pc 64/17 48/8 pc
Munich 83/28 57/13 s 58/14 48/8 r
Nairobi 79/26 54/12 sh 80/26 54/12 c
New Delhi 105/40 84/28 s 106/41 86/30 s
Oslo 68/20 46/7 sh 63/17 50/10 sh
Paris 72/22 52/11 sh 68/20 50/10 pc
Prague 78/25 56/13 pc 66/18 48/8 t
Rio de Janeiro 74/23 65/18 pc 75/23 66/18 s
Riyadh 113/45 84/28 s 104/40 81/27 s
Rome 86/30 66/18 s 85/29 63/17 s
St. Thomas 87/30 79/26 sh 88/31 79/26 sh
San Juan 72/22 45/7 pc 73/22 38/3 pc
San Salvador 84/28 70/21 t 85/29 73/22 t
Santiago 52/11 41/5 r 48/8 41/5 r
Santo Domingo 86/30 74/23 sh 85/29 74/23 sh
Sao Paulo 68/20 52/11 c 69/20 54/12 s
Seoul 88/31 67/19 pc 87/30 64/17 pc
Stockholm 59/15 48/8 r 61/16 50/10 sh
Sydney 62/16 49/9 sh 61/16 49/9 sh
Taipei 89/31 77/25 pc 89/31 77/25 sh
Tokyo 70/21 66/18 sh 72/22 62/16 sh
Toronto 71/21 59/15 pc 75/23 61/16 sh
Trinidad 84/28 68/20 pc 87/30 68/20 pc
Vancouver 68/20 55/12 c 69/20 56/13 pc
Vienna 84/28 68/20 s 91/32 59/15 s
Warsaw 70/21 50/10 c 64/17 48/8 r
Winnipeg 77/25 63/17 t 79/26 60/15 t

High Low W High Low W
F/C F/C F/C F/C

Today Friday

Weather (W): s-sunny, pc-partly cloudy, c-cloudy, sh-showers, t-thunder-
storms, r-rain, sf-snow flurries, sn-snow, i-ice, Prcp-precipitation, Tr-trace

TODAY'S U.S. FORECAST

MARINE FORECAST
WINDS WAVES VISIBILITY WATER TEMPS.

NASSAU

FREEPORT

ABACO

Today: SE at 5-10 Knots 0-2 Feet 10-20 Miles 82° F
Friday: S at 5-10 Knots 0-2 Feet 10-20 Miles 82° F
Today: SE at 5-10 Knots 0-2 Feet 10-20 Miles 81° F
Friday: S at 5-10 Knots 0-2 Feet 10-20 Miles 81° F
Today: SE at 5-10 Knots 0-2 Feet 10-20 Miles 81° F
Friday: S at 5-10 Knots 0-2 Feet 10-20 Miles 81° F

U.S. CITIES

Albuquerque 84/28 62/16 t 84/28 62/16 t
Anchorage 64/17 52/11 pc 67/19 53/11 pc
Atlanta 97/36 73/22 pc 96/35 74/23 s
Atlantic City 73/22 64/17 r 82/27 70/21 c
Baltimore 78/25 64/17 t 86/30 68/20 t
Boston 65/18 58/14 r 67/19 62/16 sh
Buffalo 66/18 54/12 sh 69/20 62/16 t
Charleston, SC 94/34 75/23 t 100/37 77/25 s
Chicago 79/26 66/18 t 82/27 63/17 t
Cleveland 72/22 61/16 pc 82/27 68/20 t
Dallas 99/37 76/24 s 97/36 75/23 s
Denver 81/27 52/11 t 81/27 55/12 pc
Detroit 78/25 60/15 pc 86/30 66/18 t
Honolulu 88/31 76/24 s 88/31 76/24 s
Houston 96/35 77/25 s 96/35 77/25 s

High Low W High Low W
F/C F/C F/C F/C

High Low W High Low W
F/C F/C F/C F/C

High Low W High Low W
F/C F/C F/C F/C

Today Friday Today Friday Today Friday

Indianapolis 87/30 71/21 t 90/32 68/20 t
Jacksonville 97/36 76/24 t 100/37 77/25 t
Kansas City 95/35 74/23 pc 88/31 69/20 t
Las Vegas 97/36 73/22 pc 100/37 79/26 s
Little Rock 96/35 74/23 s 97/36 75/23 s
Los Angeles 80/26 64/17 pc 78/25 64/17 pc
Louisville 92/33 75/23 t 94/34 75/23 pc
Memphis 97/36 76/24 s 96/35 74/23 s
Miami 89/31 78/25 t 91/32 78/25 pc
Minneapolis 79/26 63/17 t 79/26 64/17 t
Nashville 96/35 73/22 s 95/35 74/23 s
New Orleans 95/35 77/25 s 95/35 77/25 s
New York 68/20 61/16 r 79/26 66/18 c
Oklahoma City 98/36 74/23 pc 94/34 71/21 pc
Orlando 94/34 74/23 t 96/35 76/24 t

Philadelphia 75/23 64/17 r 83/28 66/18 c
Phoenix 101/38 78/25 s 97/36 75/23 c
Pittsburgh 75/23 60/15 c 82/27 64/17 t
Portland, OR 77/25 57/13 pc 71/21 55/12 pc
Raleigh-Durham 92/33 72/22 t 97/36 71/21 t
St. Louis 97/36 77/25 s 94/34 71/21 t
Salt Lake City 76/24 58/14 pc 84/28 65/18 s
San Antonio 100/37 76/24 pc 98/36 75/23 s
San Diego 72/22 66/18 pc 71/21 66/18 pc
San Francisco 74/23 56/13 s 72/22 54/12 s
Seattle 71/21 56/13 pc 69/20 53/11 pc
Tallahassee 99/37 75/23 s 102/38 74/23 s
Tampa 93/33 78/25 t 93/33 78/25 t
Tucson 94/34 72/22 pc 88/31 68/20 c
Washington, DC 81/27 65/18 t 87/30 73/22 t

UV INDEX TODAY

The higher the AccuWeather UV IndexTM number, the
greater the need for eye and skin protection.

Forecasts and graphics provided by
AccuWeather, Inc. ©2009

Cold

Warm

Stationary

Fronts

Shown are noon positions of weather systems and
precipitation.  Temperature bands are highs for the day. 
Forecast high/low temperatures are for selected cities.
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Somethin’ for
Everyone

ON THE GO.

NOW OPEN
AT THE LYNDEN PINDLING INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT  
IN THE U.S. DEPARTURE LOUNGE AND THE 
DOMESTIC / INTERNATIONAL TERMINAL.

DOWNTOWN LOCATION 
COMING SOON.

(OPPOSITE THE BRITISH COLONIAL HILTON)
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+RZODQG�&URIW�%RWWRPOH\��DJH�����D�IRUPHU�¿IW\�\HDU�UHVLGHQW�RI�*HRUJH�
7RZQ��([XPD��%DKDPDV�DQG�D�UHVLGHQW�RI�(DVWRQ��0'��IRU�WKUHH�\HDUV�GLHG�
RQ�:HGQHVGD\��-XQH����������DIWHU�D�ORQJ�LOOQHVV�DW�7DOERW�+RVSLFH�+RXVH��
(DVWRQ��0DU\ODQG�

+H�ZDV�WKH�ORQJ�WLPH�&KDLUPDQ�RI�WKH�2XW�,VODQG�5HJDWWD�5DFH�&RPPLWWHH��
QRZ� WKH� )DPLO\� ,VODQG� 5HJDWWD� &RPPLWWHH� LQ� *HRUJH� 7RZQ�� ([XPD��
%DKDPDV��

%RUQ�RQ�0D\���������LQ�&DPGHQ��1HZ�-HUVH\��KH�ZDV�WKH�VRQ�RI�WKH�ODWH�
*RUGRQ�)UHGHULFN�%RWWRPOH\�DQG�&RQVWDQFH�6KDUSH�%RWWRPOH\�

+LV�HDUOLHU�\HDUV�ZHUH�VSHQW�LQ�0HUFKDQWYLOOH��1HZ�-HUVH\�� $IWHU�DWWHQGLQJ�
WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�RI�9LUJLQLD�KH�VHUYHG�GXULQJ�WKH�.RUHDQ�:DU��0U��%RWWRPOH\�
VHUYHG�KLV�FRXQWU\� LQ� WKH�8�6��1DY\�IURP�0DUFK����������WR�0DUFK�����
�����DQG�XSRQ�KLV�KRQRUDEOH�GLVFKDUJH�ZDV�DZDUGHG�WKH�1DWLRQDO�'HIHQVH�
6HUYLFH�0HGDO��1DY\�2FFXSDWLRQ�6HUYLFH��(XURSH��0HGDO�DQG� WKH�*RRG�
&RQGXFW�0HGDO�

,Q� ����� KH� EHJDQ� FUXLVLQJ� WKH� %DKDPDV� LQ� KLV� NHWFK� $OEDWURVV� EHIRUH�
EXLOGLQJ�D�KRPH�RQ�/LWWOH�([XPD��$IWHU�HLJKW�\HDUV�DW�³7KH�&XW´��KH�PRYHG�
WR�*HRUJH�7RZQ�ZKHUH�KH�EXLOW�DQG�RSHUDWHG�5HJDWWD�3RLQW�� 7KURXJKRXW�
WKHVH�\HDUV�KH�VHUYHG�RQ�WKH�5HJDWWD�5DFH�&RPPLWWHH�EHFRPLQJ�&KDLUPDQ�
LQ������XQWLO�UHWLULQJ�IURP�WKDW�SRVW� LQ������� +H�VHUYHG�DV�&RPPRGRUH�
RI� WKH�2XW� ,VODQG�6TXDGURQ�� WKH� IRXQGLQJ�RUJDQL]DWLRQ�RI� WKH�5HJDWWD� LQ�
������ +H�ZDV�HOHFWHG�WR�WKH�5HJDWWD�+DOO�RI�)DPH�LQ�2FWREHU������DQG�ZDV�
ODWHU�PDGH�&RPPRGRUH�(PHULWXV�IRU�KLV�YDOXDEOH�VHUYLFHV�WR�WKH�5HJDWWD��
'XULQJ� KLV� \HDUV� DV� &KDLUPDQ� LQ� FORVH� FROODERUDWLRQ�ZLWK� WKH� ODWH� 5�+��
%REE\� 6\PRQHWWH�� KH� GHYHORSHG� DQG� LPSOHPHQWHG� WKH� UDFLQJ� UXOHV� DQG�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�WKDW�JRYHUQ�VORRS�UDFLQJ�LQ�WKH�%DKDPDV�

&RPPRGRUH�%RWWRPOH\�LV�VXUYLYHG�E\�WZR�GDXJKWHUV�IURP�WKH�XQLRQ�RI�KLV�
¿UVW�PDUULDJH��6KDUSH�%HDWRQ�RI�3RLQW�3OHDVDQW�%HDFK��1-��/RXLVH�&RULVK�
RI�6DJ�+DUERU��/RQJ�,VODQG��1< DQG�WZR�FKLOGUHQ�IURP�KLV�VHFRQG�XQLRQ�
RI� PDUULDJH�� +RZODQG� &URIW� %RWWRPOH\�� -U�� DQG� -DQH�$EHOO� RI� 2[IRUG��
0'�� VL[� VLEOLQJV� -DPHV� 5�� %RWWRPOH\�� .DWKOHHQ� /DQGVNURHQHU� DQG� KHU�
KXVEDQG�7KHRGRUH��1DQF\�'XQSKH\�DQG�KHU�KXVEDQG�5LFKDUG��'RQDOG�7��
%RWWRPOH\�DQG�KLV�ZLIH�/XF\��:LOOLDP�(��%RWWRPOH\�DQG�KLV�ZLIH�(OOHQ��
¿YH�JUDQGFKLOGUHQ�5DFKHO�%HDWRQ��2OLYLD�&RULVK��:LOOLDP�$EHOO��$ELJDLO�
&RULVK�DQG�0LOHV�$EHOO��QXPHURXV�QLHFHV��QHSKHZV�DQG�FRXVLQV�

$�PHPRULDO�VHUYLFH�ZLOO�EH�KHOG�DW�D�ODWHU�GDWH�LQ�*HRUJH�7RZQ��([XPD�

,Q� OLHX� RI� ÀRZHUV�� PHPRULDO� RIIHULQJV� PD\� EH� PDGH� LQ� &RPPRGRUH�
%RWWRPOH\¶V�PHPRU\�WR�WKH�7DOERW�+RVSLFH�)RXQGDWLRQ������&\QZRRG�'U���
(DVWRQ��0'��������

$UUDQJHPHQWV� KDYH� EHHQ� HQWUXVWHG� WR� 0LG� 6KRUH� &UHPDWLRQ� &HQWHU��
&DPEULGJH�� 0'�� /HWWHUV� RI� FRQGROHQFHV� PD\� EH� VHQW� WR� ZZZ�FXUUDQ�
EURPZHOO�FRP��
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RELIGIOUS NEWS,
STORIES AND

CHURCH EVENTS

n By LLOYD ALLEN
Tribune Features Reporter
lallen@tribunemedia.net

THIS Sunday is Father’s
Day, and the question being
asked is what are the ele-
ments that contribute to
being a good father.

There have been significant cries
throughout the local community in
recent times calling for more fathers
to step up to the plate and  it seems
somewhat futile to expect those
Absent Without Leave (AWOL)
fathers to become good ones especial-
ly if they don‘t know how. 

While a turn around for these men
may seem far fetched, some men
argue that it is a real possibility and
must first begin with their acknowl-
edgment of responsibility.

Proverbs 22 verse 6 says : “Train up
a child in the way he should go, and
when he is old he will not depart from
it.” 

The responsibility for the rearing
and training a child specifically boys is
the duty of the father.

Joy FM 101.9 radio personality
Kermit ‘T’ aka Kermit Taylor, said the
good life he shares with his family
today would not have been possible
without the help of his father.

He explained: “As a child growing
up, my father worked as a family
island commissioner. So it meant that
every three to five years I was always
on a new family island. 

“Living in the family island with my
father being commissioner was fun,
because my dad was known as the
‘Chief.’ However he was always busy,
but my dad was the kind of person
who made it a point that all of his kids
got an education.”

Coming from a family of six chil-
dren, he remembers his father being
present and rooting for all the kids to
get the most out of school.

His biggest challenge was in math,
and his father always made certain
that he attended after school classes.

“I remember on one occasion I
skipped those classes for about three
days out of the week, and my tutor
told my dad that she hadn’t seen me.

SEE page 23

FINDING THE RIGHT

FORMULA
FATHER
FOR BEING A GOOD

THIS father of three has devoted himself to them, being as active, concerned, and
committed to their lives as his father was to him.
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“Holy!Holy! Holy! Merciful and
Mighty, God in three persons, blessed
Trinity” and “Ever Three And Ever
One, Consubstantial, Co-eternal” are
some of the phrases to be found in
hymns which celebrate the Most Holy
Trinity. Individual hymns based on a
particular person of the Trinity such
as Praise to the Lord the Almighty the
King of Creation, What a Friend we
have in Jesus, Come Down O love
Divine, capture some of the distinc-
tive characteristics associated with
these persons of the Trinity. It is very
uplifting and informative to read,
study, pray and sing the hymns.

Matthew 28:19 states: “Therefore
go and make disciples baptising them
in the name of

Father and the Son, and of the Holy
Spirit.” This is our charge to put into
practice. We are commanded to build

the Kingdom of God using the name
of the Trinity as depicted by their
relationship One to Another (Father,
Son, and Holy Spirit.).

Some questions worth asking our-
selves are: Are we going? Are we
encouraging anyone to consider a
relationship with our Lord and
Saviour? Are we making any disciples
at home or abroad? Some questions
to put to friends, family members and
colleagues are:

Do you know that you are created

in God the Creator’s image?
Do you know that God, the Son,

Jesus Christ, died on the cross to save
you from sin?

Do you know that God the Holy
Spirit will live within you if you allow
it?

The actual word Trinity is not men-
tioned in the Bible but here are some
passages from the New International
Version which capture the nature of
the roles and relationships between
the members of our triune Godhead:
Let them bring you to a place of awe,
wonder and worship:

Mark 1:10-12: “As Jesus was com-
ing up out of the water, he saw heav-
en being torn open and the Spirit
descending on him like a dove. And a
voice came from heaven:

"You are my Son, whom I love;
with you I am well pleased." At once
the Spirit sent him out into the
desert”

Acts 1:4-5: On one occasion, while
he was eating with them, he gave
them this command: "Do not leave
Jerusalem, but wait for the gift my

Father promised, which you have
heard me speak about. For John bap-
tised with[a] water, but in a few days
you will be baptised with the Holy
Spirit."

John 3:5 and 16: “Jesus answered,
"I tell you the truth, no one can enter
the kingdom of God unless he is born
of water and the Spirit. Flesh gives
birth to flesh, but the Spirit[b] gives
birth to spirit…"For God so loved the
world that he gave his one and only
Son,[f] that whoever believes in him
shall not perish but have eternal life.”

Romans :5: 5-6: “And hope does
not disappoint us, because God has
poured out his love into our hearts by
the Holy Spirit, whom he has given
us. You see, at just the right time,
when we were still powerless, Christ
died for the ungodly.”

Roman 8: 15-“you received the
Spirit of sonship.[g] And by him we
cry, "Abba,[h] Father." The Spirit
himself testifies with our spirit that
we are God's children. Now if we are
children, then we are heirs—heirs of
God and co-heirs with Christ.”

Holy! Holy! Holy!

REV. ANGELA
C BOSFIELD
PALACIOUS

MEDITATION

n By ALEX MISSICK
Tribune Features Reporter
amissick@tribunemedia.net

BAHAMAS Wisdom
Academy will be hosting an
educational seminar under the
theme: “A Heart to Give,” as a
continued effort to raise aware-
ness throughout the Bahamian
community about special needs
children and the importance of
education.

The seminar will stretch over a two day
period at the Chapel on the Hill, Tonique
Williams-Darling Highway June 19 at
7.30pm and June 20 at 9am.

Seminar host and founder of Bahamas
Wisdom Academy, Michelle Wildgoose,
said she decided to start a special needs
school because of her son, Mikhail.

“I have difficulty finding schools for him.
So I had to go about and change my whole
career path over the past 12 years. I got my
degree in education and then my Master in
Business Administration. I then went to
University if Phoenix and did my Masters in
Special Education.  There are so many per-
sons out there in our community who need
help with their special needs children and
during this time when everything is so
expensive, we want to share something with
the community,” Mrs Wildgoose said.

Mrs Wildgoose said the seminar’s main
goal is to give information to the communi-

ty from different perspectives.
“Information is key now a days and with

the lack of information we find ourselves
not knowing what to do when we have chal-
lenges with our children. However, when
we share information, those of us who don’t
know, we will then understand how to han-
dle our kids better,” Mrs Wildgoose said.

Speakers include Arthurlue Rahming,
who will share on the heart of an advocate
for adult literacy, Michelle Ihring, a special
educator, Gary Reece, will speak on a heart
of an overcomer and to parents who have
challenges with teenagers and young adults,
Dr Norman Gay, will speak on a heart of a
physician offering information on various
supplements kids need, and Opposition
Leader Perry Christie.

“Mr Christie will be speaking on the
heart of a parent due to the fact that he has
a special needs child. I am sure the nation
would benefit hearing from him. So many
of us don’t want to share relative to our per-
sonal information but hearing it coming
from a man, would really touch the heart of
others and encourage people not to give in
or give up on their kids,” Mrs Wildgoose
said.

Mrs Wildgoose said she would like to
ensure persons get at least gain wisdom
from the experience.

“We want this educational seminar to
become a stimulus to awaken our nation to
the many educational challenges and
resolve to find solutions as a nation to help
with the challenges we face in our everyday
situations. So together, we can make a dif-
ference here.”

AT THE HEART OF SPECIAL EDUCATION

MICHELLE
WILDGOOSE,
Founder and
Principal of
Bahamas
Wisdom
Academy.
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METHODIST work on Andros
began during the year 1841. We extract
the following account from the
"Report of the Societies and Schools in
the Bahamas" for the year ending
December 1845: 

As soon as possible after the arrival
of the late Wm Wheelock among us, J
Wm Pearson visited the society at
Andros Island and reported on his
return that he found them united and
pious and a few were added to their
number during his short sojourn
among them. The voyage thither was
very rough and stormy and on their
return perilous in the extreme as the
vessel sprung a leak and became
unmanageable; but through ceaseless
exertions at the pump and the mechan-
ical ingenuity of the passengers and
crew and the animating exhortations of
Mr Pearson they made the west end of
Providence. We hear of the leaders the
most pleasing accounts of the consis-
tent deportment of the members and
hope soon as the committee shall send
us additional help not only to visit the
society at Coakley Town but our mem-
bers scattered everywhere around the
shores of that large fertile island.”

This account gives us a glimpse into
the history of the early days of
Methodist work on Andros. It appears
that by 1845 the Methodist members

were not to be found in one particular
locality, but "scattered everywhere."

When one of the "charity" schools at
Nicholl's Town was transferred to the
Methodists "the wooden school house
was now also used as a chapel and a
day school." A teacher was employed
from 1843-45 (Bicentenary Souvenir
Magazine, 1960). The day school
teacher had to be withdrawn because
of "want of means to remunerate his
services." (The Report of the Societies
and Schools, 1846). 

The membership of the society on
the island was 31 in 1847 and 22 in
1848. By 1856 when the report on
Andros appears under the New
Providence Circuit report, there were
20 members meeting under the charge
of one male and one female leader.
These leaders were "steady and faith-
ful souls" who reported "favourably"
on the state of their classes. 

The account with which this outline
was opened gives us an indication of

the difficult circumstances under which
the work of ministry was carried out on
Andros. Added to this, the report for
1863 reveals that: "Andros Island and
the Biminis have not been visited dur-
ing the year." The reason given is the
absence of the New Providence
preachers in Abaco and Eleuthera for
Missionary purpose. 

The membership continued to
decline, howbeit, very slightly. The
1864 report on Bimini and Andros
shows 16 members at Bimini and 19 at
Andros and adds, "for the present we
have nothing special to report”.  

A society was formed at Staniard
Creek in 1887 and a chapel was built in
1888. Local sources on Andros inform
us that the Methodist Church at
Stafford Creek was built when the Rev
J Barrett  (Bahamian minister) was the
resident minister and William
Woodside was a local preacher in the
society. The chapel was completed in
1899 and was used as a place of refuge
during the hurricane of 1899. However,
the Bicentenary Souvenir Magazine
(1960) indicates that this chapel was
built in 1904 and rebuilt in 1928. The
hurricane of 1899 almost wrecked the
chapel at Nicholl's Town. 

The Synod of 1902 reported the fol-
lowing statistics for Andros: 95 mem-
bers, 1 missionary, 4 local preachers, 6

class leaders and 20 Sunday School
teachers. 

Up to the Synod of 1903 there were
four churches and one other preaching
place. The Synod of 1906 reported that
a new chapel was in the course of erec-
tion at Mastic Point. "This is a new
cause and is most successful and prom-
ising. The people are working willingly
and giving generously. At present serv-
ices are held in the houses of some of
the members." The chapel at Mastic
Point was completed in 1909. 

By the Synod of 1914 a new rest
house at Calabash Bay was completed
and was being used for divine worship.
In 1918 the rest house at Calabash Bay
was slated to be removed to Stafford
Creek. In 1919 the chapel at Nicholl's
Town was completed and the rest
house at Staniard Creek was renovat-
ed. The chapel at Mastic Point was
destroyed by hurricane in 1926 and
rebuilt in 1929. During the period of
the construction of the new chapel,
worship services were held in the
rest/mission house. This construction
was a community affair. Some mem-
bers recall that the Rev Eric M Walker,
the resident minister, also assisted, car-
rying baskets of lime on his shoulders.

(Next time – Part 34 – The Methodist
Church in Andros 1841 – 1929)

JIM
LAWLOR

The Methodist Church in Andros 1841 - 1929
PART 33

Matt.3:17. And lo a voice from heav-
en, saying. This is my beloved Son, in
whom I am well pleased.

As we religiously celebrate the day
and concepts of Father's day and based
upon the deterioration of our nation, it
is quite clear to me that as educated
and as spiritually spooky as we are; a
vast majority of the fathers within and
outside our homes have yet to under-
stand the importance of a Father's
Affirmation. 

Again, who am I to speak on such
issue? Seeing that I'm not one of the
country's religious bishops, doctors,
apostles, etc; and I don't have a big
church building, I host no conferences
nor do I have a TV ministry.

Well, with that being said I hasten to
say that if these religious clowns
(themselves) understood the impor-
tance of a Father's Affirmation the
church in the Bahamas would be a
force to be reckoned with in both the
spirit and natural realm; but it's obvi-
ous this is not the case with the church
today.

Watch this!
Even Yeshuwa Messiah, before He

began His earthly ministry waited to be
affirmed by His Father (Matt.3:17b.
This is my beloved Son, in whom I am
well pleased)

From the religious perspective I can
assure you that with the over four
thousand churches we've got through-
out the Bahamas; about 60 per cent of
them have broken away from another
church due to some strife or confusion.
And if the truth be told many of their
spiritual fathers can't honestly say that
“This is my beloved son or daughter, in
whom I am well pleased”     

There are some dynamics at work as
it relates to the so-called spiritual
fathers of today not being able to
affirm sons and daughters in the min-

istry; let's look at a few of them.
1. Many of the church fathers today,

themselves have not been affirmed by
a spiritual father; and it is a proven fact
that people who were hurt before have
no problem hurting others.

2. The church fathers are more
focused on building their empire rather
than preparing and giving birth to spir-
itual sons and daughters to further
advance the kingdom of God

3. The affirmation and nurturing of
sons and daughters is a costly process
both spiritually and naturally.  Watch
this!  In the natural, a good father will
stop at nothing, and spear no expense
to see to it that his son or daughter suc-
ceeds in life; even greater than he has
done.

The father, son relationship is so
important to the kingdom of God;
here's what Yeshuwa said.

John 5:20. For the Father loveth the
Son, and showeth him all things that
himself doeth: and he will show him
greater works than these, that ye may
marvel.

So, instead of just religiously cele-
brating Father's Day; why not take the
bull by its horn and properly deal with
the issues of fathers in this country.  We
can't keep on beating fathers and ask-
ing them to step up to the plate, where-
as many of them went into fatherhood
without the true knowledge and wis-
dom of being a father; and also being
affirmed by their fathers.

Religion, tradition and thinking have
compiled all the junk together and
came up with what we now celebrate
and call Father's Day. What we've yet
to understand is that there is a huge
difference between a father and a
daddy; being the educated, religious
people that we are, I need not give the
Greek and Hebrew translation / inter-
pretation of the word father.  For I
know quite well that you've gotten just
about every book, tape, video and cd
there is from the powerful conferences
you've attended.  Yet our homes and
nation are still crying out for the mani-
festation of fathers.

I'm not hating on the men, because
there are truly some very good fathers
out there; but the numbers are greater
on the daddies' side.  The havoc that

A father’s affirmation

PASTOR
MATTHEW
ALLEN

SEE page 23

             



The TribunePG 22 • Thursday, June 18, 2009 RELIGION

n By PASTOR WILBUR OUTTEN
Senior Pastor Freeport 
Bible Church 

“I am not writing this to shame you, but
to warn you, as my dear children. Even
though you have ten thousand
guardians in Christ, you do not have
many fathers, for in Christ Jesus I
became your father through the gospel.
Therefore I urge you to imitate me.”

(1 Corinthians 4:14-16-NIV)  

Fathers play a pivotal role in the lives
of their children. A US News and World
Report article stated that more than vir-
tually any other factor, a father's pres-
ence in the family will determine a
child's success and happiness. The article
went on to say that the importance of
fathers is demonstrated by what occurs
when fathers aren't around and
involved. Studies show that children who
grow up without fathers are more likely
to drop out of high school, commit delin-
quent acts or engage in drugs and alco-
hol use.

A local study showed that 90 per cent
of Bahamian young men incarcerated,
did not have a relationship with their
fathers.

In order to have good fathers, we need
good men who are prepared to model
what God wants. Here are six essential
traits of a Godly man and father:

1. A Godly man or father leads with clarity
Ephesians chapter 5 states that the

husband is the head of the wife as
Christ is the head of the church. This
therefore suggests that the husband or
the father is the head of the home. A
Godly man and father should paint a
clear picture of the future he envisions
for his family that will inspire and moti-
vate them to pursue it. In order to lead,
however, you must have some sense of
direction as to where you are going. As
fathers you have the responsibility and
obligation to lead, you must therefore
also model the life you wish your chil-
dren to emulate. If you are following
Christ, you can tell your children with
confidence to follow your lead.

2. A Godly father loves unconditionally 
It is easy to love your children when

they are doing well, getting good grades
in school etc., however, when they are
not doing well some parents find it hard
to love them. Love is not performance
based. Unconditional love is love in
spite of; that is the way God loves us.
“While we were still sinners, Christ died
for us”. (Romans 5:8-NIV) Can you
love your children that way?

3. A Godly father labours tirelessly
Godly fathers work hard to meet the

essential needs of their families. A lazy
man is an ungodly man. “If anyone does
not provide for his relatives, and espe-

cially for his immediate family, he has
denied the faith and is worse than an
unbeliever” (1Timothy 5:8-NIV)
Mothers should not have to be around
the court trying to get $20 a week from
you to take care of your children.

4. A Godly father listens intently
Fathers have a responsibility to listen

to what is going on with their children.
God, the model father is a listener; that
is why he said, “call unto me and I will
answer.” In order to lead properly, you
must learn to listen. Listening commu-
nicates love. You place value on a per-
son when you listen to them. It is
affirming.

5. A Godly father leans confidently on
Christ

As fathers in a complicated, complex
world, you must lean on the Lord for
directives. Godly fathers lean on the
Lord for salvation; “For it is by grace
you have been saved, through faith-and
this not from yourselves, it is the gift of
God-not by works, so that no one can
boast” (Ephesians 2:8-9 NIV), sound-
ness; the capacity to make good deci-
sions, “If any of you lacks wisdom, he
should ask God, who gives generously
to all without finding fault, and it will be
given to him” (James 1:5-NIV)     and
supply; “But my God shall supply all
your needs according to His riches in
glory by Christ Jesus” (Philippians 4:19-
KJV)

6. A Godly father leaves a lasting legacy
Godly fathers leave a lasting legacy

of integrity, morality and faith. “A good
man leaves an inheritance for his chil-
dren's children”. (Proverbs 13:22) This
not only applies to money, but also the
way you live is passed on to your chil-
dren. How can you create and leave a
lasting, Godly legacy? Your habits now
become your legacy later. The habits
that your children are noticing are
going to be the legacy you leave behind
for them. You determine what you are
going to leave by your practices now.  

Fathers do play a pivotal role in the
destiny of their children's lives. God has
given you the wherewithal to determine
whether that destiny is going to be one
filled with good things or one filled with
bitterness. The Bible says in Ephesians
6:4: “Fathers, provoke not your children
to wrath, but bring them up in the nature
and admonition of the Lord”.

• This is just a brief summary of the mes-
sage “Essential Traits of a Godly Dad.” To
purchase a cassette tape or CD of the mes-
sage in its entirety, you may visit Freeport
Bible Church on West Atlantic Drive,
Freeport. For questions or comments con-
cerning the message you may email
freeportbiblechurch@coralwave.com or
telephone 352-6065.  

Essential traits of a Godly dad
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ANGLICANS will gather this
Father’s Day, Sunday, June 21,
2009, at 7pm at Christ Church
Cathedral, for a Solemn Pontifical
Evensong, Sermon, Procession
and Benediction, in anticipation
of the Feast of the Nativity of St
John on June 24.

St John The Baptist is the
Patron Saint of The Anglican
Diocese of The Bahamas and the
Turks & Caicos Islands.

Reverend Laish Zane Boyd, Sr.,
Bishop of The Diocese of The
Bahamas and The Turks & Caicos
Islands will officiate and preach
the sermon for this special service.
Music will be provided by the
choir of the Parish of The Most
Holy Trinity, and Preston
Ferguson will be the organist.

“According to Holy Scripture,
St John the Baptist was the kins-

man of Jesus, and the son of the
priest Zechariah and his wife
Elizabeth.  Scripture says that
John was six months older than
Jesus).

According to the tradition of the
Church, St John The Baptist, the
last of the Old Testament
prophets, was born June 24 circa
3/2 BC.  He was thirty years old
when he began his mission to call
the covenant people to a baptism
(ritual purification) of repentance
in order to prepare them for the
coming of the Messiah and the
promised “new covenant.” 

There will be no services in any
New Providence Anglican church-
es on Sunday evening, and all
Church organisations are request-
ed to attend the service in full uni-
form.  ZNS TV 13 will record the
service for airing at a later date.

the enemy is wreaking within our fam-
ilies and nation is due to the lack of
true Godly Fathers.  If I didn't know
any better I would have strongly
advised that the day and celebration be
called (Happy Daddy's Day, rather
than Happy Father's Day).

Now, I serve notice to the religious
leaders. This is the last year when all of
the attention and spot light is going to
be upon you. If you are a true father,
you would seek to honour  faithful sons
and daughters in the ministry; rather
than every year you're the one driving
off in the new car or receiving the spe-
cial offering.  What about that faithful
user, the parking lot attendant, the
church maintenance man or the strug-
gling family man in the ministry that
you are well aware of? How about hon-
oring one of them on Father's Day with
a $10 or S20,000 gift?

The happiness and joy of a father is
to see his children's children walking in
the in-heritance he has set up for them.
Again, with that being said we've got a
long way to go as a nation to truly
appreciate the concept and sayings of
Happy Father's Day. Herein, I'm
reminded that with God, all things are
possible; so to the few real Fathers out
there, I do salute you in saying Happy
Father's Day.

• Pastors Matthew & Brendalee Allen,
Kingdom Minded Fellowship Center Int'

FROM page 21
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Anglicans to celebrate diocesan patronal festival
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“My dad took me there the next
week, and I might as well tell you after
disciplining me, I never missed a class
after that whether I liked it or not.”

He added that while their relation-
ship did have it’s challenges particular-
ly after his parent’s divorce, he remem-
bers his father always being an active
part of his life. And just as he was taken
care of by his father in his childhood,
he along with his other siblings were
also given the responsibility of taking
care of their him when he got older and
fell ill.

Kermit said after his father was diag-
nosed with Parkinson’s disease, he
gladly took care of him until his death
in 2005.

Even today, he has devoted himself
to his three children, being as active,
concerned, and committed to their lives
as his father was to him.

Kermit explained that being a real
father in every sense of the word can
seem daunting, but is necessary.

“I remember one year my youngest
son Kristen was competing in a long
jump competition and was expecting
me to be there when he was perform-
ing. The events that day were running
ahead of time, and by the time I got
there he had already finished jumping,
and said to me ‘Daddy I didn’t do too
well, but if you was here I would have
done better you know,’ and those
words echo in my head today. 

“So you never know the contribution
you make to your children by simply
being there. I want to encourage par-
ents to be active in the lives of their
children.”

Youth activist Carlos Reid told
Tribune Religion that although he did
not have a bad relationship with his
father, he always felt like he was seek-
ing his approval. 

“Growing up I think I got the kind of
discipline that most people would call
abuse, but my father was the kind of
man who never wasted time or energy
when it came to disciplining his chil-
dren.” 

Mr Reid said even after becoming an
adult, their relationship was still some-
what difficult and he always seemed to
be have to prove himself.

He said he never really felt validated
by his father until after writing and
publishing his first book.

“He was all over the island telling his
friends and everyone else that his son
was the writer of this book, that made
me feel good, but it also made me think
on how many other children wait on
this approval and never get it from
their parent.”

Mr Reid said this is the reason so
many children resort to gangs, sex, and
drugs, using them as  a Band-Aids to
cover to feelings of emptiness and
worthlessness. 

“The father plays an important role
when it comes to the right-of-passage
for a boy going into manhood, and the

frequentness of fathers failing to do
this has to change.”

As most adult men can biologically
contribute to the creation of a child, Mr
Reid said they must also give more of
themselves to their kids which in
essence is the one thing they ultimately
need to feel complete.

FROM page 19

Finding the right formula
for being a good father

CARLOS REID

“Growing up I think I got the kind
of discipline that most people
would call abuse, but my father
was the kind of man who never
wasted time or energy when it
came to disciplining his children.”
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ANOTHER year in the Bahamas
approaches the midway point and we
have already had 28 murders. Most of
the crime and major social problems are
attributed to youth and in particular
males. The vast majority of the murder
accused and the victims have been
young men. Increasingly our females are
following the lead of males in anti social
or self destructive behaviour. Our youth
are obviously in need of guidance and
intervention. 

Youth Alive, considered one of the
premier Youth Conferences in this
region and the world is an annual con-
ference that is designed to minister to
youth, youth leaders, youth pastors and
others interested in the development
and training of young people. It address-
es the topics and issues today's youth are
faced with and provides practical, rele-
vant answers to these challenges in a
way that young people can relate to,
stressing leadership training. 

The event has attracted over 5,000
youth from the Bahamas, United States,
Canada, and Europe and   is a lively,
energetic event with dynamic teaching,
music, drama and special events 

This year's event is scheduled for July
1-5 at The Diplomat Center, Carmichael
Road under the Theme: The
Assignment: “Living Right in a World
Gone Wrong,” and will include speakers
such as  motivational speaker and
author and former Miss California,
Lakita Garth, Pastor Durre Thomas of
Calvary Temple, Freeport, youth pastor
Terren Dames (Bahamian) of Dallas
Texas, minister and communications
specialist DJ Roker of West Palm
Beach, Ricardo Miller of Dallas Texas a
world renowned Children and Youth
ministry specialist, Brooke Eneas, min-
ister and former Miss Florida
Panhandle, Myles Munroe, Dave
Burrows and Angie Burrows. 

Ricardo Clark, Mr Lynxx, Christian
Massive, Mr Beeds, Naje Dun,
Landlord and a host of others, some
who are featured on the newly released
Youth Alive  Soundtrack will provide
musical selections.  The event begins
with a a spectacular Drama production
titled “Showtime.” Day and night ses-
sions follow Thursday and Friday with
special sessions for Youth and Youth
Leaders as well as pastors and parents.
Friday night is a huge concert and after
party. Admission is free, however spe-
cial incentives and discounts are offered
in Registration Packages ranging from
$15 - $85. Concert tickets are $10
advance and $12 at the door.

“Living Right in a World Gone Wrong”
A response
to current
youth issues

YOUTH ALIVE considered
one of the premier Youth
Conferences in this region
and the world  addresses
the topics and issues
today's youth are faced
with and provides practi-
cal, relevant answers to
these challenges in a way
that young people can
relate  to by stressing
leadership training.
Pictured are scenes from
last year’s successful
event. -This year's event
is scheduled for July 1-5.
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